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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the period ended March 31, 2009

OR

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from         to         
Commission file number 1-8993

WHITE MOUNTAINS INSURANCE GROUP, LTD.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Bermuda 94-2708455
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

80 South Main Street,
Hanover, New Hampshire 03755-2053
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(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant�s telephone number, including area code:  (603) 640-2200

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months, and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes   x   No   o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months.

Yes   x   No   o

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company.  See definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer� and �smaller reporting company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer x Accelerated filer o Non-accelerated filer o Smaller reporting company o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).

Yes   o   No   x

As of April 30, 2009, 8,856,586 common shares with a par value of $1.00 per share were outstanding (which includes
92,620 restricted common shares that were not vested at such date).
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION.

Item 1. Financial Statements

WHITE MOUNTAINS INSURANCE GROUP, LTD.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

March 31, December 31,
(Millions, except share and per share amounts) 2009 2008

Unaudited
Assets
Fixed maturity investments, at fair value (amortized cost: $5,712.3 and $5,631.6) $ 5,630.5 $ 5,480.5
Common equity securities, at fair value (cost: $323.0 and $558.4) 318.8 552.7
Short-term investments, at amortized cost (which approximates fair value) 2,148.4 2,244.5
Other long-term investments (cost: $421.2 and $431.2) 395.1 416.2
Convertible fixed maturity investments, at fair value (cost: $284.9 and $327.3) 265.0 308.8
Securities lending investment assets - OneBeacon (cost: $50.8 and $0) 46.9 �
Total investments 8,804.7 9,002.7
Cash (restricted: $130.7 and $225.7) 448.8 409.6
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses 1,329.2 1,358.8
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses - Berkshire Hathaway Inc. 1,655.5 1,691.6
Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses 66.9 47.3
Insurance and reinsurance premiums receivable 982.6 835.7
Securities lending collateral - OneBeacon � 100.7
Securities lending collateral - WMRe America 105.8 119.3
Funds held by ceding companies 145.6 163.3
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates 99.7 116.9
Deferred acquisition costs 327.7 323.0
Deferred tax asset 658.1 724.0
Ceded unearned premiums 165.7 111.3
Accrued investment income 64.5 67.4
Accounts receivable on unsettled investment sales 25.6 78.2
Other assets 760.1 746.0
Total assets $ 15,640.5 $ 15,895.8
Liabilities
Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves $ 7,260.1 $ 7,400.1
Unearned insurance and reinsurance premiums 1,732.3 1,597.4
Debt 1,349.2 1,362.0
Securities lending payable - OneBeacon 48.6 107.7
Securities lending payable - WMRe America 112.8 127.1
Deferred tax liability 289.5 306.0
Incentive compensation payable 71.7 154.3
Funds held under reinsurance treaties 76.6 79.1
Ceded reinsurance payable 162.6 101.3
Accounts payable on unsettled investment purchases 23.5 7.5
Other liabilities 1,031.3 1,140.8
Total liabilities 12,158.2 12,383.3
Shareholders� equity and noncontrolling interests
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White Mountains� shareholders� equity
White Mountains common shares at $1 par value per share - authorized 50,000,000 shares;
issued and outstanding 8,854,086 and 8,808,843 shares 8.9 8.8
Paid-in surplus 1,422.8 1,419.4
Retained earnings 1,776.3 1,751.9
Accumulated other comprehensive income, after-tax:
Equity in unrealized losses from investments in unconsolidated affiliates (219.6) (198.4)
Net unrealized foreign currency translation losses (101.7) (61.5)
Other (20.5) (21.4)
Total White Mountains shareholders� equity 2,866.2 2,898.8
Noncontrolling interests
Noncontrolling interest - OneBeacon Ltd. 287.0 283.5
Noncontrolling interest - WMRe Preference Shares 250.0 250.0
Noncontrolling interest - consolidated limited partnerships and A.W.G Dewar 79.1 80.2
Total noncontrolling interests 616.1 613.7
Total equity 3,482.3 3,512.5
Total liabilities and equity $ 15,640.5 $ 15,895.8

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1
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WHITE MOUNTAINS INSURANCE GROUP, LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME

Unaudited

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(Millions, except per share amounts) 2009 2008
Revenues:
Earned insurance and reinsurance premiums $ 911.4 $ 929.1
Net investment income 61.1 116.8
Net realized and unrealized investment losses (23.3) (118.0)
Other revenue 17.3 10.0
Total revenues 966.5 937.9
Expenses:
Loss and loss adjustment expenses 543.2 638.7
Insurance and reinsurance acquisition expenses 182.2 186.7
Other underwriting expenses 115.4 116.8
General and administrative expenses 55.9 56.7
Accretion of fair value adjustment to loss and loss adjustment expense reserves 2.5 4.2
Interest expense on debt 18.9 19.4
Interest expense - dividends on preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption � 7.1
Interest expense - accretion on preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption � 10.5
Total expenses 918.1 1,040.1
Pre-tax income (loss) 48.4 (102.2)
Income tax (expense) benefit (12.3) 32.5
Income (loss) before equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates, and
extraordinary item 36.1 (69.7)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates .9 .4
Excess of fair value of acquired assets over cost � 4.2
Net income (loss) before noncontrolling interests 37.0 (65.1)
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interest (6.7) 8.3
Net income (loss) attributable to White Mountains common shareholders 30.3 (56.8)
Comprehensive loss, net of tax:
Change in equity in net unrealized losses from investments in unconsolidated affiliates (18.2) (20.5)
Change in foreign currency translation and other (39.0) 56.5
Comprehensive net loss before noncontrolling interests (26.9) (20.8)
Comprehensive net (loss) income attributable to noncontrolling interests (.3) .3
Comprehensive net loss attributable to White Mountains shareholders $ (27.2) $ (20.5)
Earnings (loss) per share attributable to White Mountains common shareholders
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ 3.44 $ (5.38)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share 3.44 (5.38)
Dividends declared and paid per White Mountains common share $ 1.00 $ 2.00

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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WHITE MOUNTAINS INSURANCE GROUP, LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Unaudited

White Mountains Common Shareholders� Equity
Common Accum. other

Common shares and comprehensive Non-
shareholders� paid-in Retained income, controlling

(Millions) equity surplus earnings after-tax interest
Balances at January 1, 2009 $ 2,898.8 $ 1,428.2 $ 1,751.9 $ (281.3) $ 613.7

Cumulative effect adjustment - Symetra FAS
115-2 � � 3.0 (3.0) �
Net income 30.3 � 30.3 � 6.7
Other comprehensive loss, after-tax (57.5) � � (57.5) .3
Dividends declared on common shares (8.9) � (8.9) � �
Dividends/distributions to noncontrolling
interests � � � � (7.3)
Contributions from noncontrolling interests � � � � 2.7
Amortization of restricted share and option
awards 3.5 3.5 � � �

Balances at March 31, 2009 $ 2,866.2 $ 1,431.7 $ 1,776.3 $ (341.8) $ 616.1

White Mountains Common Shareholders� Equity
Common Accum. other

Common shares and comprehensive Non-
shareholders� paid-in Retained income, controlling

(Millions) equity surplus earnings after-tax interest
Balances at January 1, 2008 $ 4,713.4 $ 1,691.2 $ 2,718.5 $ 303.7 $ 888.7

Cumulative effect adjustment - FAS 157 (.3) � (.3) � �
Cumulative effect adjustment - FAS 159 � � 199.6 (199.6) �
Net loss (56.8) � (56.8) � (8.3)
Other comprehensive gain, after-tax 36.3 � � 36.3 (.3)
Dividends declared on common shares (21.2) � (21.2) � �
Dividends/distributions to noncontrolling
interests � � � � (57.0)
Issuances of common shares 8.2 8.2 � � �
Contributions from noncontrolling interests � � � � 1.0
Repurchases and retirements of common
shares (3.3) (1.1) (2.2) � (48.8)
Amortization of restricted share and option
awards 2.9 2.9 � � �

Balances at March 31, 2008 $ 4,679.2 $ 1,701.2 $ 2,837.6 $ 140.4 $ 775.3

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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WHITE MOUNTAINS INSURANCE GROUP, LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Unaudited

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(Millions) 2009 2008
Cash flows from operations:
Net income (loss) $ 30.3 $ (56.8)
Charges (credits) to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash used for operations:
Net realized and unrealized investment losses 23.3 118.0
Excess of fair value of acquired assets over cost � (4.2)
Noncontrolling interest 6.7 (8.3)
Other operating items:
Net change in loss and loss adjustment expense reserves (92.1) (116.3)
Net change in reinsurance recoverable on paid and unpaid losses 39.7 76.7
Net change in unearned insurance and reinsurance premiums 149.8 109.2
Net change in funds held by ceding companies 6.0 16.1
Net change in deferred acquisition costs (7.7) 7.7
Net change in ceded unearned premiums (56.5) (43.3)
Net change in funds held under reinsurance treaties (2.1) (4.6)
Net change in insurance and reinsurance premiums receivable (154.1) (79.2)
Net change in other assets and liabilities, net 24.2 (41.9)
Net cash used for operations (32.5) (26.9)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Net change in short-term investments 89.8 (1,019.6)
Sales of fixed maturity and convertible fixed maturity investments 834.0 1,527.2
Maturities, calls and paydowns of fixed maturity and convertible fixed maturity investments 249.5 359.4
Maturities of trust account investments � 3.4
Sales of common equity securities 192.6 138.4
Distributions of other long-term investments 10.3 34.9
Sales of consolidated and unconsolidated affiliates, net of cash sold � 4.2
Purchases of other long-term investments (5.7) (40.4)
Purchases of common equity securities (17.6) (162.1)
Purchases of fixed maturity and convertible fixed maturity investments (1,226.3) (1,144.9)
Purchases of consolidated and unconsolidated affiliates, net of cash acquired � (182.0)
Net change in fixed maturity investments held for collateral under OneBeacon�s securities lending
program (44.7) �
Net change in short-term investments held for collateral under OneBeacon�s securities lending
program (2.2) �
Net change in unsettled investment purchases and sales 68.6 225.8
Net acquisitions of property and equipment (2.7) (3.3)
Net cash provided from (used for) investing activities 145.6 (259.0)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of debt � 475.0
Repayment of debt (2.0) (2.0)
Repurchase of debt (8.1) �
Cash dividends paid to the Company�s common shareholders (8.9) (21.2)
Cash dividends paid to OneBeacon Ltd.�s noncontrolling common shareholders (4.9) (54.7)
Net change in OneBeacon�s securities lending payable 46.9 �
OneBeacon Ltd. common shares repurchased and retired � (52.8)
Common shares repurchased � (3.3)
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Proceeds from option exercises � .1
Net cash provided from financing activities 23.0 341.1
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (1.9) 3.1
Net increase in cash during the period 134.2 58.3
Cash balances at beginning of period (excludes restricted cash balances of $225.7 and $0) 183.9 171.3
Cash balances at end of period (excludes restricted cash balances of $130.7 and $42.4) $ 318.1 $ 229.6
Supplemental cash flows information:
Interest paid $ (14.8) $ (14.0)
Net receipts from (payments to) national governments $ 20.6 $ (21.5)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4

Edgar Filing: WHITE MOUNTAINS INSURANCE GROUP LTD - Form 10-Q

10



Table of Contents

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of presentation

These interim consolidated financial statements include the accounts of White Mountains Insurance Group, Ltd. (the �Company� or the �Registrant�)
and its subsidiaries (collectively, with the Company, �White Mountains�) and have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States (�GAAP�). The Company is an exempted Bermuda limited liability company whose principal
businesses are conducted through its property and casualty insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries and affiliates. The Company�s headquarters is
located at 14 Wesley Street, Hamilton, Bermuda HM 11, its principal executive office is located at 80 South Main Street, Hanover, New
Hampshire 03755-2053 and its registered office is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, Bermuda HM 11.  White Mountains�
reportable segments are OneBeacon, White Mountains Re, Esurance and Other Operations.

The OneBeacon segment consists of OneBeacon Insurance Group, Ltd. (�OneBeacon Ltd.�), an exempted Bermuda limited liability company that
owns a family of U.S.-based property and casualty insurance companies (collectively �OneBeacon�), most of which operate in a multicompany
pool. OneBeacon offers a wide range of specialty, commercial and personal products and services sold primarily through select independent
agents and brokers. OneBeacon was acquired by White Mountains in 2001 (the �OneBeacon Acquisition�). During the fourth quarter of 2006,
White Mountains sold 27.6 million, or 27.6%, of OneBeacon Ltd.�s common shares in an initial public offering (the �OneBeacon Offering�). At
March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, White Mountains owned 75.5% of OneBeacon Ltd.�s outstanding common shares.

The White Mountains Re segment consists of White Mountains Re Ltd., an exempted Bermuda limited liability company, and its subsidiaries
(collectively, �White Mountains Re�).  White Mountains Re offers reinsurance capacity for property, casualty, accident & health, agriculture,
aviation and space and certain other exposures on a worldwide basis through its subsidiaries, White Mountains Reinsurance Company of
America (�WMRe America�), which was formerly known as Folksamerica Reinsurance Company, Sirius International Insurance Corporation
(�WMRe Sirius�), and White Mountains Re Bermuda Ltd. (�WMRe Bermuda�).  White Mountains Re also provides reinsurance advisory services,
specializing primarily in property and other short-tailed lines of reinsurance, through White Mountains Re Underwriting Services Ltd.
(�WMRUS�).  White Mountains Re also includes Scandinavian Reinsurance Company, Ltd. (�Scandinavian Re�) which is in run off, and the
consolidated results of the Tuckerman Capital II, LP fund (�Tuckerman Fund II�), which was transferred to White Mountains Re from Other
Operations, effective June 30, 2008.

The Esurance segment consists of Esurance Holdings, Inc., its subsidiaries and Answer Financial Inc. (�AFI� and, collectively, �Esurance�). 
Esurance sells personal auto insurance directly to customers online and through select online agents.  AFI, which White Mountains acquired
during 2008, is a personal insurance agency that sells insurance online and in call centers.

White Mountains� Other Operations segment consists of the Company and its intermediate holding companies, its wholly-owned investment
management subsidiary, White Mountains Advisors LLC (�WM Advisors�), its weather risk management business (�Galileo�) and its variable
annuity reinsurance business, White Mountains Life Reinsurance (Bermuda) Ltd. (�WM Life Re�). The Other Operations segment also includes
White Mountains� investments in Lightyear Delos Acquisition Corporation (�Delos�), common shares and warrants to purchase common shares of
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Symetra Financial Corporation (�Symetra�) and the consolidated results of the Tuckerman Capital, LP fund (�Tuckerman Fund I�) and Tuckerman
Fund II until its transfer to White Mountains Re, effective June 30, 2008 and various other entities not included in other segments. Prior to
October 31, 2008, the Other Operations segment also included the International American Group, Inc. (the �International American Group�),
which included American Centennial Insurance Company (�American Centennial�) and British Insurance Company of Cayman (�British Insurance
Company�), both of which were in run-off.  On October 31, 2008, in a transaction with Berkshire Hathaway, Inc. (�Berkshire�), White Mountains
exchanged its ownership interests in Commercial Casualty Insurance Company (previously a subsidiary of White Mountains Re) and the
International American Group, and $707.9 million in cash, for 1,634,921 common shares of White Mountains held by Berkshire (the �Berkshire
Exchange�).

5
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All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. These interim financial statements include all adjustments
considered necessary by management to fairly present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of White Mountains that are of
a normal recurring nature. These interim financial statements may not be indicative of financial results for the full year and should be read in
conjunction with the Company�s 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.  Refer to the Company�s 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K for a complete discussion regarding White
Mountains� significant accounting policies.

Noncontrolling Interests

Noncontrolling interests consist of the ownership interests of noncontrolling parties in consolidated subsidiaries, and are presented separately as
a component of equity on the balance sheet.

The percentage of the noncontrolling ownership interests in OneBeacon Ltd. at March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 was 24.5%.

On May 24, 2007, White Mountains Re Group, Ltd. (�WMRe Group�), an intermediate holding company of White Mountains Re, issued 250,000
non-cumulative perpetual preference shares with a $1,000 per share liquidation preference (the �WMRe Preference Shares�). Proceeds of $245.7
million, net of $4.3 million of issuance costs and commissions, were received from the issuance.  The WMRe Preference Shares are included in
noncontrolling interests on the balance sheet.

Recently Adopted Changes in Accounting Principles

Business Combinations and Noncontrolling Interests

On January 1, 2009, White Mountains adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (�FAS�)No. 141 (Revised 2007), Business
Combinations � A Replacement of FASB Statement No. 141 (�FAS 141R�) and FAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests-an amendment to ARB 51
(�FAS 160�).

FAS 141R requires an acquiring company to recognize the fair value of all assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their fair values at the
acquisition date, with certain exceptions. This represents a basic change in approach from the cost allocation method originally described in FAS
141, Business Combinations (�FAS 141�). In addition, FAS 141R changes the accounting for �step� acquisitions since it requires recognition of all
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, regardless of the acquirer�s percentage of ownership in the acquired company. This means that the
acquirer will measure and recognize all of the assets, liabilities and goodwill, not just the acquirer�s share. Changes subsequent to the acquisition
date in the amount of deferred tax valuation allowances and income tax uncertainties arising from a business combination are generally
recognized in income; previously under FAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (�FAS 109�), such changes were recognized through
goodwill. FAS 141R applies prospectively to business combinations effective January 1, 2009. There was no effect on White Mountains�
financial position, results of operations or cash flows upon adoption.
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FAS 160 requires all companies to account for noncontrolling interests (formerly referred to as �minority interests�)  in subsidiaries as equity,
clearly identified and presented separately from White Mountains� equity. Once a controlling interest has been acquired, any subsequent
acquisitions or dispositions of noncontrolling interests that do not result in a change of control are accounted for as equity transactions. Assets
and liabilities acquired are measured at fair value only once, at the original acquisition date, (i.e., the date at which the acquirer gained control).
The recognition and measurement requirements of FAS 160 are applicable prospectively upon adoption; the presentation and disclosure
requirements must be retrospectively applied. Accordingly, upon adoption of FAS 160, White Mountains has changed the presentation of its
financial statements for prior periods to conform to the required presentation, as follows:  noncontrolling interests are now presented on the
balance sheets within equity, separate from White Mountains� shareholders� equity; the portion of net income, extraordinary items and
comprehensive income attributable to White Mountains� common shareholders and the noncontrolling interests are presented separately on the
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income; and the consolidated statements of shareholders� equity includes a
reconciliation of the noncontrolling interests at the beginning and end of each reporting period.

Derivatives Disclosures

On January 1, 2009, White Mountains adopted FAS No. 161, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities - an amendment
of FAS 133 (�FAS 161�). FAS 161 requires companies that use derivatives to provide expanded qualitative and quantitative information about
their use of derivative instruments, including the objectives and strategies for using derivatives, details of credit-risk related contingent features,
the amounts of derivatives used, where they have been reported in the financial statements and the effect of such instruments on a company�s
financial position, results of operations and cash flows. The adoption of FAS 161 had no effect on White Mountains� financial position or results
of operations.

6

Edgar Filing: WHITE MOUNTAINS INSURANCE GROUP LTD - Form 10-Q

14



Table of Contents

Participating Securities Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions

On January 1, 2009, White Mountains adopted FASB Staff Position (�FSP�) EITF 03-6-1, Determining Whether Instruments Granted in
Share-Based Transactions are Participating Securities. FSP EITF 03-6-1 addresses whether instruments granted in share-based payment
transactions should be considered participating securities prior to vesting. FSP EITF 03-6-1 requires that such instruments that hold unforfeitable
rights to dividends or dividend equivalents, regardless of whether paid or unpaid, should be considered participating securities and accordingly
should be included in the calculation of earnings per share under the two-class method instead of the treasury stock method. White Mountains
issues restricted stock under employee incentive compensation plans that contain dividend participation features and that are considered
participating securities. Since adoption, White Mountains has used the two-class method to calculate earnings per share. In accordance with the
adoption provisions of FSP EITF 03-6-1 all prior period earnings per share data has been adjusted retroactively to conform to the provisions of
FSP EITF 03-6-1.

Fair Value Measurements

On January 1, 2008, White Mountains adopted FAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (�FAS 157�). FAS 157 provides a revised definition of
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands financial statement disclosure requirements for fair value information.
Under FAS 157, fair value is defined as the price that would be received for an asset sold or paid for a liability transferred, in each case, in an
orderly transaction between market participants (an exit price). The Statement establishes a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between inputs
based on market data from independent sources (�observable inputs�) and a reporting entity�s internal assumptions based upon the best information
available when external market data is limited or unavailable (�unobservable inputs�). The fair value hierarchy in FAS 157 prioritizes fair value
measurements into three levels based on the nature of the inputs. Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities have the
highest priority (�Level 1�).  The second priority level are prices determined based on observable inputs including prices for similar but not
identical assets or liabilities (�Level 2�).  The lowest priority are prices based on assumptions that include significant unobservable inputs (�Level
3�).

White Mountains uses brokers and outside pricing services to assist in determining fair values. For investments in active markets, White
Mountains uses the quoted market prices provided by the outside pricing service to determine fair value. The outside pricing services used by
White Mountains have indicated that they will only provide prices where observable inputs are available.  In circumstances where quoted prices
are unavailable, White Mountains utilizes fair value estimates based upon other observable inputs including matrix pricing, benchmark interest
rates, market comparables and other relevant inputs.

White Mountains� process to validate the market prices obtained from outside pricing sources includes, but is not limited to, periodic evaluation
of model pricing methodologies and monthly analytical reviews of certain prices. White Mountains also periodically performs back-testing of
selected sales activity to determine whether there are any significant differences between the market price used to value the security prior to sale
and the actual sale price.

Other long-term investments, which comprise limited partnerships, hedge funds and private equity interests for which the FAS 159, The Fair
Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, fair value option has been elected are carried at fair value based upon White
Mountains� proportionate interest in the underlying partnership�s or fund�s net asset value, which is deemed to approximate fair value. In
circumstances where the partnership net asset value is deemed to differ from fair value due to illiquidity or other factors, net asset value is
adjusted accordingly.

Where appropriate, assets and liabilities measured at fair value have been adjusted for the effect of counterparty credit risk.
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Fair Value Option

On January 1, 2008, White Mountains adopted FAS No.159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (�FAS 159�).
FAS 159 allows companies to make an election on an individual instrument basis to report financial assets and liabilities at fair value. The
election must be made at the inception of a transaction and may not be reversed. The election may also be made for existing financial assets and
liabilities at the time of adoption. White Mountains has made the fair value election for its portfolio of available for sale (�AFS�) securities, which
were reclassified to trading upon adoption, its investments in convertible bonds, its investments in investment partnerships and for its assumed
variable annuity Guaranteed Minimum Death Benefit (�GMDB�) liabilities.

Upon adoption, White Mountains recorded an adjustment as of January 1, 2008 to increase opening retained earnings and decrease accumulated
other comprehensive income by $199.6 million to reclassify net unrealized gains and net unrealized foreign currency translation gains related to
AFS securities and investments in limited partnerships.

7
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In addition, White Mountains recorded an adjustment to decrease opening retained earnings and increase other liabilities by $0.3 million for the
change in the GMDB liabilities arising from measurement at fair value. White Mountains believes that making the election for its portfolio of
investment securities and investments in hedge funds and private equity funds results in reporting its investment results on a basis consistent
with one of its operating principles, namely to manage investments for total return. With respect to the variable annuity GMDB guarantees,
making the election results in recognition of changes in fair value on the same basis used by White Mountains to economically hedge its variable
annuity guarantee liabilities.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Other-Than-Temporary Impairments

On April 9, 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2, Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary Impairments,
which amends the guidance for other-than temporary impairments for debt securities classified as held-to-maturity (�HTM�) or available-for-sale
(�AFS�). FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2 requires that, when evaluating whether an impairment of a debt security is other than temporary, the
reporting entity is to assess whether it has the intent the sell the security or if it is more likely than not that it will be required to sell the security
before the recovery of its amortized cost basis. If the present value of cash flows expected to be collected is less than the amortized cost of the
security, a credit loss is deemed to exist and the security is considered to be impaired. The portion of the impairment loss related to a credit loss
is to be recognized in earnings. The portion of the impairment loss related to factors other than credit loss is recognized as an unrealized loss. 
FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2 is effective for interim financial reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009, but may be adopted early.

White Mountains plans to adopt the FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2 for the quarter ending June 30, 2009. White Mountains accounts for its
investments in debt securities under FAS 159 and, accordingly, all changes in the fair value of its debt securities are recognized in earnings
regardless of whether such changes in fair value represent a temporary or other than temporary decline in value. As a result, adoption of the FSP
FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2 would not have any affect on White Mountains� method of accounting for its portfolio of investment securities.
However, White Mountains� investment in Symetra is accounted for under the equity method. Symetra adopted the FSP for the quarter ended
March 31, 2009. Upon adoption of the FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2, Symetra recognized a cumulative effect adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings with a corresponding adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income. Accordingly, for the quarter ended
March 31, 2009, White Mountains recorded a $3.0 million cumulative effect adjustment to retained earnings and other comprehensive income,
which represents its portion of the cumulative effect adjustment recorded by Symetra.

Determining Fair Values in an Inactive Market and Distressed Transactions

On April 9, 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-4, Determining Fair Value When the Volume and Level of Activity for the Asset or Liability
Have Significantly Decreased and Identifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly (�FSP 157-4�). FSP 157-4 outlines factors to be considered by a
reporting entity in determining whether a market for an asset or liability is active. These factors include few recent transactions, price quotations
that are not based on current information or which vary substantially over time or among market makers, a significant increase in implied
liquidity risk premiums, yields or performance indicators, a wide bid-ask spread, a significant decline or absence of a market for new issuances
or limited information released publicly. In circumstances where the reporting entity concludes that there has been a significant decrease in the
volume of market activity for an asset or liability as compared to normal market activity, transactions or quoted prices may not reflect fair value.
In such circumstances, FSP 157-4 requires analysis of the transactions or quoted prices and, where appropriate, adjustment to estimate fair value
in accordance with FAS 157. In addition, FSP 157-4 would expand interim disclosures to require a description of the inputs and valuation
techniques used to estimate fair value and a discussion of changes during the period. FSP 157-4 is effective for interim and annual reporting
periods ending after June 15, 2009, with early adoption permitted. White Mountains plans to adopt FSP 157-4 for the interim period ending
June 30, 2009. Adoption of FSP 157-4 is not expected to have a material effect on White Mountains� financial position or results of operations.
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Interim Fair Value Disclosures

On April 9, 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1, Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments which
requires disclosures about fair value of financial instruments within the scope of FAS 107 for interim reporting periods. FSP FAS 107-1 and
APB 28-1 is effective for interim reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009 with early adoption permitted. White Mountains plans to adopt
FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1 for the interim reporting period ending June 30, 2009.

8
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Note 2.  Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserves

The following table summarizes the loss and loss adjustment expense (�LAE�) reserve activities of White Mountains� insurance subsidiaries for the
three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Millions 2009 2008
Gross beginning balance $ 7,400.1 $ 8,062.1
Less beginning reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses (3,050.4 ) (3,467.9 )
Net loss and LAE reserves 4,349.7 4,594.2

Loss and LAE reserves acquired - Helicon � 13.7

Loss and LAE incurred relating to:
Current year losses 563.9 618.3
Prior year losses (20.7 ) 20.4
Total incurred losses and LAE 543.2 638.7

Accretion of fair value adjustment to loss and LAE reserves 2.5 4.2
Foreign currency translation adjustment to loss and LAE reserves (6.7 ) 25.9

Loss and LAE paid relating to:
Current year losses (141.8 ) (149.0 )
Prior year losses (471.5 ) (465.0 )
Total loss and LAE payments (613.3 ) (614.0 )

Net ending balance 4,275.4 4,662.7
Plus ending reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses 2,984.7 3,375.3
Gross ending balance $ 7,260.1 $ 8,038.0

Loss and LAE incurred relating to prior year losses for the three months ended March 31, 2009

During the three months ended March 31, 2009, White Mountains experienced $20.7 million of favorable loss reserve development.  OneBeacon
and White Mountains Re had favorable loss reserve development of $14.8 million and $5.9 million, respectively.

The favorable loss reserve development at OneBeacon was primarily due to lower than expected severity on non-catastrophe losses related to
professional liability in specialty lines and commercial multi-peril in commercial lines, partially offset by adverse loss reserve development
primarily related to New York personal injury protection litigation at AutoOne Insurance (�AutoOne�). The favorable loss reserve development at
White Mountains Re was primarily related to short-tailed lines at WMRe Sirius.

Loss and LAE incurred relating to prior year losses for the three months ended March 31, 2008
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During the three months ended March 31, 2008, White Mountains experienced $20.4 million of adverse loss reserve development.  White
Mountains Re had adverse loss reserve development of $33.0 million, which was offset by $12.6 million of favorable loss reserve development
at OneBeacon.

The net adverse loss reserve development at White Mountains Re of $33.0 million included $40.5 million of adverse development related to
construction defect claims from accident years 2003 and prior.  These losses were offset by $7.5 million of net favorable development primarily
from recent accident years.  The construction defect claims represent building contractors� loss exposures from reinsurance programs that were
underwritten by White Mountains Re America during the 1995 through 2001 underwriting years, primarily from California and its neighboring
states. The adverse development was recognized following the receipt of significantly late reported claims. The favorable loss reserve
development at OneBeacon was primarily due to lower than expected severity on non-catastrophe losses and favorable loss reserve development
on a prior accident year catastrophe. The favorable non-catastrophe loss reserve development was primarily related to property in commercial
lines and professional liability in specialty lines.

9
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Fair value adjustment to loss and LAE reserves

In connection with purchase accounting for the acquisitions of OneBeacon, WMRe Sirius and Stockbridge Insurance Company, White
Mountains was required to adjust loss and LAE reserves and the related reinsurance recoverables to fair value on their respective acquired
balance sheets.  The net reduction to loss and LAE reserves is being recognized through an income statement charge ratably with and over the
period the claims are settled. Accordingly, White Mountains recognized $2.5 million of such charges for the three months ended March 31,
2009, and $4.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2008.  As of March 31, 2009, the pre-tax un-accreted adjustment was $39.2
million.

Note 3. Third Party Reinsurance

In the normal course of business, White Mountains� insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries may seek to limit losses that may arise from
catastrophes or other events by reinsuring with third party reinsurers. White Mountains remains liable for reinsured risks in the event that the
reinsurer does not honor its obligations under reinsurance contracts.

OneBeacon

At March 31, 2009, OneBeacon had $19.8 million of reinsurance recoverables on paid losses and $2,642.4 million (gross of $201.5 million in
purchase accounting adjustments) that will become recoverable if claims are paid in accordance with current reserve estimates. The collectability
of balances due from OneBeacon�s reinsurers is critical to OneBeacon�s financial strength because reinsurance contracts do not relieve
OneBeacon of its primary obligation to its policyholders. OneBeacon is selective with its reinsurers, placing reinsurance with only those
reinsurers having a strong financial condition. OneBeacon monitors the financial strength of its reinsurers on an ongoing basis. Uncollectible
amounts have historically not been significant. The following table provides a listing of OneBeacon�s top reinsurers, excluding industry pools
and associations, based upon recoverable amounts, the percentage of total paid and unpaid reinsurance recoverables and the reinsurer�s A.M. Best
Company, Inc. (�A.M. Best�) rating.

Top Reinsurers (Millions)
Balance at

March 31, 2009 % of Total
A.M. Best
Rating(1)

Subsidiaries of Berkshire (NICO and GRC)(2) $ 1,928.5 72% A++
Tokio Marine and Nichido Fire(3) 55.2 2% A++
QBE Insurance Corporation 45.3 2% A
Munich Re America 41.2 2% A+
Swiss Re Group 22.9 1% A

(1) A.M. Best ratings as detailed above are: �A++� (Superior, which is the highest of fifteen ratings), �A+� (Superior, which is the second
highest of fifteen ratings), and �A� (Excellent, which is the third highest of fifteen ratings).

(2) Includes $320.2 of Third Party Recoverables, which NICO would pay under the terms of the NICO Cover (as defined below) if they are
unable to collect from third party reinsurers. OneBeacon also has an additional $264.7 of Third Party Recoverables from various reinsurers, the
majority of which are rated �A� or better by A.M. Best.

(3) Excludes $41.1 of reinsurance recoverables from various reinsurers that are guaranteed by Tokio Marine and Nichido Fire under the
terms of a 100% quota share reinsurance agreement between Houston General Insurance Company and Tokio Marine and Nichido Fire.
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In connection with the OneBeacon Acquisition, the seller caused OneBeacon to purchase two reinsurance contracts: a full risk-transfer cover
from National Indemnity Company (�NICO�) for up to $2.5 billion in old A&E claims and certain other exposures (the �NICO Cover�) and an
adverse loss reserve development cover (the �GRC Cover�) from General Reinsurance Corporation (�GRC�) for up to $570.0 million, comprised of
$400.0 million of adverse loss reserve development on losses occurring in years 2000 and prior and $170.0 million of reserves ceded as of the
date of the OneBeacon Acquisition. The NICO Cover and GRC Cover, which were contingent on and occurred contemporaneously with the
OneBeacon Acquisition, were put in place in lieu of a seller guarantee of loss and LAE reserves and are therefore accounted for as a seller
guarantee under GAAP in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Technical Matter Document No. D-54 (�EITF Topic D-54�). NICO and
GRC are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Berkshire.
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Under the terms of the NICO Cover, NICO receives the economic benefit of reinsurance recoverables (�Third Party Recoverables�) from certain
of OneBeacon�s third party reinsurers in existence at the time the NICO Cover was executed. As a result, the Third Party Recoverables serve to
protect the $2.5 billion limit of NICO coverage for the benefit of OneBeacon. White Mountains estimates that on an incurred basis, net of Third
Party Recoverables, as of March 31, 2009 it has used approximately $2.2 billion of the coverage provided by NICO.  Through March 31, 2009,
$1.1 billion of these incurred losses have been paid by NICO. Since entering into the NICO Cover, $44.7 million of the $2.2 billion of utilized
coverage from NICO related to uncollectible Third Party Recoverables. To the extent that actual experience differs from White Mountains�
estimate of ultimate A&E losses and Third Party Recoverables, future losses could utilize some or all of the protection remaining under the
NICO Cover.

Pursuant to the GRC Cover, OneBeacon is not entitled to recover losses to the full contract limit if such losses are reimbursed by GRC more
quickly than anticipated at the time the contract was signed. OneBeacon intends to only seek reimbursement from GRC only for claims which
result in payment patterns similar to those supporting its recoverables recorded pursuant to the GRC Cover. The economic cost of not submitting
certain other eligible claims to GRC is primarily the investment spread between the rate credited by GRC and the rate achieved by OneBeacon
on its own investments. This cost, if any, is expected to be nominal.

Effective July 1, 2008, OneBeacon renewed its property catastrophe reinsurance program through June 30, 2009.  The program provides
coverage for all OneBeacon property business including automobile physical damage, as well as acts of terrorism unless committed on behalf of
a foreign interest (or utilizing nuclear, biological, chemical or radiological devices).  Under the program, the first $150 million of losses resulting
from a single catastrophe are retained by OneBeacon and $650 million of the next $700 million of losses resulting from the catastrophe are
reinsured.  Any loss above $850 million would be retained by OneBeacon. In the event of a catastrophe, OneBeacon�s property catastrophe
reinsurance program is reinstated for the remainder of the original contract term by paying a reinstatement premium that is based on the
percentage of coverage reinstated and the original property catastrophe coverage premium.

OneBeacon entered into a 30% quota share agreement with a group of reinsurers that runs from January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2009.
During the first quarter of 2009, OneBeacon ceded $13.6 million of written premiums from its Northeast homeowners business written through
OneBeacon Insurance Company and its subsidiary companies, along with Adirondack Insurance and New Jersey Skylands Insurance
Association in New York and New Jersey, respectively.

White Mountains Re

At March 31, 2009, White Mountains Re had $46.3 million of reinsurance recoverables on paid losses and $541.3 million of reinsurance that
will become recoverable if claims are paid in accordance with current reserve estimates. Because reinsurance contracts do not relieve White
Mountains Re of its obligation to its ceding companies, the collectability of balances due from its reinsurers is critical to White Mountains Re�s
financial strength. White Mountains Re monitors the financial strength of its reinsurers on an ongoing basis. The following table provides a
listing of White Mountains Re�s top reinsurers based upon recoverable amounts, the percentage of total paid and unpaid reinsurance recoverables
and the reinsurers� A.M. Best ratings.

Top Reinsurers (Millions)
Balance at

March 31, 2009 % of Total
A.M. Best
Rating (2) % Collateralized

Imagine Re (1) $ 146.7 25% NR-5 100%
Olympus (1)(3) 107.3 18% NR-5 100%
London Life (1) 70.8 12% A 100%
General Re 46.5 8% A++ 4%
Swiss Re Group 44.2 8% A 6%
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(1) Non-U.S. insurance entities. Balances are fully collateralized through funds held, letters of credit or trust agreements.

(2) A.M. Best ratings as detailed above are: �NR-5� (Not formally followed), �A++� (Superior, which is the highest of fifteen ratings), and �A�
(Excellent, which is the third highest of fifteen ratings).

(3) Gross of $50.0 due to Olympus Reinsurance Company Ltd. (�Olympus�) under an indemnity agreement with WMRe America.
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Note 4.  Investment Securities

White Mountains� invested assets comprise securities and other long-term investments held for general investment purposes.  The portfolio of
fixed maturity investments and common equity securities held for general investment purposes are classified as trading. Trading securities are
reported at fair value as of the balance sheet date as determined by quoted market prices when available.  Realized and unrealized investment
gains and losses on trading securities are reported pre-tax in revenues. See Recently Adopted Changes in Accounting Principles section of Note
1 for further discussion.

White Mountains has invested in mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities which are carried at fair value within fixed maturity investments. 
White Mountains� investments in asset-backed securities are generally valued using matrix and other pricing models. Key inputs in a typical
valuation are benchmark yields, benchmark securities, reported trades, issuer spreads, bids, offers, credit ratings and prepayment speeds. Income
on mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities is recognized using an effective yield based on anticipated prepayments and the estimated
economic life of the securities. When actual prepayments differ significantly from anticipated prepayments, the estimated economic life is
recalculated and the remaining unamortized premium or discount is amortized prospectively over the remaining economic life. At March 31,
2009, the market for White Mountains� investments in asset-backed securities remained active and accordingly, White Mountains did not adjust
the fair value estimates for the effect of illiquidity.

Realized gains and losses resulting from sales of investment securities are accounted for using the weighted average method.  Premiums and
discounts on all fixed maturity investments are accreted to income over the anticipated life of the investment.  Short-term investments consist of
money market funds, certificates of deposit and other securities which mature or become available for use within one year.  Short-term
investments are carried at amortized cost, which approximated fair value as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008.

Other long-term investments comprise White Mountains� investments in limited partnerships, hedge funds and private equity interests.

White Mountains is currently exploring options for exiting its securities lending programs. White Mountains participated in securities lending
programs through both OneBeacon and White Mountains Re as a mechanism for generating additional investment income.  Under the security
lending arrangements, certain securities White Mountains owns are loaned to other institutions for short periods of time through a lending agent. 
The security lending counterparty is required to provide collateral for the loaned securities, which is then invested by the lending agent.  The
collateral is normally required at a rate of 102% of the fair value of the loaned securities. For OneBeacon�s program prior to February 2009 and
for White Mountains Re�s program, the collateral is fully controlled by the lending agent and may not be sold or re-pledged.  The fair value of the
securities lending collateral is recorded as both an asset and a liability, however, other than in the event of a default by the borrower, the
collateral is not available to White Mountains and will be remitted to the borrower by the lending agent upon return of the loaned securities.
Because of these restrictions, White Mountains considers White Mountains Re�s securities lending activities and OneBeacon�s securities lending
activities prior to February 2009 to be non-cash transactions. In the event of a shortfall in the collateral amount required to be returned to the
security lending counterparty (e.g., as a result of investment losses), White Mountains is obligated to make up any deficiency.  The value that
can be loaned under White Mountains� securities lending programs cannot exceed approximately $170 million.

In February 2009, OneBeacon amended the terms of its securities lending program to give it more control over the investment of borrowers�
collateral and to segregate the assets supporting that collateral from a collective investment vehicle managed by the lending agent into a separate
account. Pursuant to the amendment, (i) the guidelines for the investment of any new cash collateral, as well as the reinvestment of cash, were
narrowed to permit investment in only cash equivalent securities, (ii) OneBeacon has the authority to direct the lending agent to both sell
specific collateral securities in its separate account and to not sell certain collateral securities which the lending agent proposes to sell, and
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(iii) OneBeacon and the lending agent agreed to manage the securities lending program toward an orderly wind-down, which OneBeacon
believes will be completed over an approximately 1 to 2 year period.

As a result of this change, OneBeacon�s securities lending program is now recorded so that assets in the separate account are included within
White Mountains� investment securities.  The separate account is comprised of $44.7 million of fixed maturity investments and $2.2 million of
short-term investments.  Accordingly, purchases and sales of invested assets held in the separate account as well as changes in the payable to the
borrower for the return of collateral are reflected in the investing and financing sections of the cash flow statement commencing with the quarter
ended March 31, 2009.

At March 31, 2009, there was an $8.7 million collateral shortfall ($1.7 million at OneBeacon and $7.0 million at WMRe America) for the
securities lending programs. White Mountains has recorded unrealized gains of $4.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2009 for the
net impact of the securities lending programs.
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Pre-tax net investment income for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Millions 2009 2008
Investment income:
Fixed maturity investments $ 57.4 $ 97.1
Short-term investments 2.8 12.3
Common equity securities 1.8 9.1
Convertible fixed maturity investments 1.9 1.7
Total investment income 63.9 120.2
Less investment expenses (2.8) (3.4)
Net investment income, pre-tax $ 61.1 $ 116.8

Net realized and unrealized investment losses

White Mountains recognized $(23.3) million and $(118.0) million on net realized and unrealized investment losses for the three months ended
March 31, 2009 and 2008.

Net realized investment losses

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Millions 2009 2008
Fixed maturity investments $ (32.7) $ (12.6)
Short-term investments .1 �
Common equity securities (51.1) 3.4
Other long-term investments (3.4) (7.7)
Convertible fixed maturity investments .8 3.9
Net realized investment losses pre-tax $ (86.3) $ (13.0)

For the three months ended March 31, 2009, White Mountains recognized $58.6 million of after-tax realized losses.  During the three months
ended March 31, 2008, White Mountains recognized after-tax realized losses of $8.4 million.

Net unrealized investment gains (losses)

The following table summarizes changes in the carrying value of investments measured at fair value:
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Three Months Ended
March 31, 2009

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2008

Millions

Net
unrealized

gains
(losses)

Net
foreign

exchange
gains

Total
changes in
fair value

reflected in
earnings

Net
unrealized

gains
(losses)

Net
foreign

exchange
gains

(losses)

Total
changes in
fair value

reflected in
earnings

Fixed maturities $ 64.1 $ 3.0 $ 67.1 $ 3.8 $ 2.2 $ 6.0
Common equity
securities (1.6 ) 3.0 1.4 (82.1 ) (.7 ) (82.8 )
Short-term investments (.2 ) .2 � .3 1.2 1.5
Convertible fixed
maturities (1.4 ) � (1.4 ) (16.5 ) � (16.5 )
Other long-term
investments (6.5 ) 2.4 (4.1 ) (13.2 ) � (13.2 )
Net unrealized
investment gains
(losses) $ 54.4 $ 8.6 $ 63.0 $ (107.7 ) $ 2.7 $ (105.0 )

White Mountains recognized after-tax unrealized gains (losses) of $39.3 million and $(76.2) million for the three months ended March 31, 2009
and 2008.
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The cost or amortized cost, gross unrealized investment gains and losses, and carrying values of White Mountains� fixed maturity investments as
of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, were as follows

March 31, 2009

Millions

Cost or
amortized

cost

Gross
unrealized

gains

Gross
unrealized

losses

Net foreign
currency

gains(losses)
Carrying

value
U.S. Government obligations $ 655.2 $ 29.4 $ (.3) $ 5.0 $ 689.3
Debt securities issued by
industrial corporations 2,392.1 35.3 (119.8) (4.3) 2,303.3
Municipal obligations 7.4 .4 � � 7.8
Mortgage-backed and
asset-backed securities 1,863.1 19.6 (102.9) 21.2 1,801.0
Foreign government obligations 768.9 27.7 (1.4) 25.0 820.2
Preferred stocks 74.2 .2 (20.8) � 53.6
Total fixed maturity investments
(1) $ 5,760.9 $ 112.6 $ (245.2) $ 46.9 $ 5,675.2

(1) Total fixed maturity investments includes $44.7 of investments included as part of Securities lending investment assets - OneBeacon

December 31, 2008

Millions

Cost or
amortized

cost

Gross
unrealized

gains

Gross
unrealized

losses

Net foreign
currency

gains(losses)
Carrying

value
U.S. Government obligations $ 785.4 $ 24.4 $ (14.4) $ 3.5 $ 798.9
Debt securities issued by
industrial corporations 1,746.9 25.0 (112.2) (12.4) 1,647.3
Municipal obligations 7.4 .3 (.1) � 7.6
Mortgage-backed and
asset-backed securities 2,321.1 21.2 (138.4) 37.3 2,241.2
Foreign government obligations 696.6 28.3 (8.0) 14.2 731.1
Preferred stocks 74.2 .1 (19.9) � 54.4
Total fixed maturity investments $ 5,631.6 $ 99.3 $ (293.0) $ 42.6 $ 5,480.5

The cost or amortized cost, gross unrealized investment gains and losses, and carrying values of White Mountains� common equity securities,
convertible fixed maturities, and other long-term investments as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, were as follows:

March 31, 2009

Millions

Cost or
amortized

cost

Gross
unrealized

gains

Gross
unrealized

losses

Net foreign
currency

gains
Carrying

value
Common equity securities $ 323.0 $ 12.4 $ (40.8) $ 24.2 $ 318.8
Convertible fixed maturities $ 284.9 $ 3.1 $ (23.0) $ � $ 265.0
Other long-term investments $ 421.2 $ 42.5 $ (77.0) $ 8.4 $ 395.1

December 31, 2008
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Millions

Cost or
amortized

cost

Gross
unrealized

gains

Gross
unrealized

losses

Net foreign
currency

gains
Carrying

value
Common equity securities $ 558.4 $ 18.0 $ (44.9) $ 21.2 $ 552.7
Convertible fixed maturities $ 327.3 $ 3.2 $ (21.7) $ � $ 308.8
Other long-term investments $ 431.2 $ 44.2 $ (65.2) $ 6.0 $ 416.2
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Fair value measurements at March 31, 2009

White Mountains adopted FAS 157 on January 1, 2008. FAS 157 established a hierarchy of fair value measurements based upon the nature of
the inputs as follows:

Level 1 � Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets;

Level 2 � Valuations based on observable inputs that do not meet the criteria for Level 1, including quoted prices in inactive markets and quoted
prices in active markets for similar, but not identical instruments;

Level 3 � Valuations based on unobservable inputs.

White Mountains uses observable inputs for the vast majority of its investment portfolio. Fair value measurements for securities for which
quoted prices are unavailable are estimated based upon reference to observable inputs such as benchmark interest rates, matrix pricing, market
comparables, broker quotes and other relevant inputs. In circumstances where quoted prices or observable inputs are adjusted to reflect
management�s best estimate of fair value, such fair value measurements are considered a lower level measurement in the FAS 157 fair value
hierarchy. Other long-term investments, which comprises limited partnerships, hedge fund and private equity interests for which the FAS 159
fair value option has been elected are carried at fair value based upon White Mountains� proportionate interest in the underlying partnership�s or
fund�s net asset value, which is deemed to approximate fair value. In circumstances where the partnership net asset value is deemed to differ from
fair value due to illiquidity or other factors, net asset value is adjusted accordingly.  At March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, White
Mountains did not adjust the net asset values used to determine fair value because an active secondary market for such investments existed.

The following tables summarizes White Mountains� fair value measurements for investments at March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, by
level:

March 31, 2009
Millions Fair value Level 1 Inputs Level 2 Inputs Level 3 Inputs
Fixed maturities $ 5,675.2 $ 572.1 $ 4,932.5 $ 170.6
Common equity securities 318.8 173.0 36.5 109.3
Convertible fixed maturity investments 265.0 � 264.3 .7
Short-term investments 2,150.6 2,150.6 � �
Other long-term investments (1) 381.4 � � 381.4
Total investments $ 8,791.0 $ 2,895.7 $ 5,233.3 $ 662.0

(1) The fair value of other long-term investments excludes carrying value of $13.7 associated with other investment limited partnerships
accounted for using the equity method.
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December 31, 2008
Millions Fair value Level 1 Inputs Level 2 Inputs Level 3 Inputs
Fixed maturities $ 5,480.5 $ 689.4 $ 4,634.7 $ 156.4
Common equity securities 552.7 399.2 40.2 113.3
Convertible fixed maturity investments 308.8 � 308.8 �
Short-term investments 2,244.5 2,244.5 � �
Other long-term investments (1) 402.4 � � 402.4
Total investments $ 8,988.9 $ 3,333.1 $ 4,983.7 $ 672.1

(1) The fair value of other long-term investments excludes carrying value of $13.8 associated with other investment limited partnerships
accounted for using the equity method.

In addition to the investment portfolio described above, White Mountains has $38.0 million and $41.8 million of liabilities recorded at fair value
in accordance with FAS 157 and included in other liabilities as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008.  These liabilities relate to securities
that have been sold short by limited partnerships that White Mountains invests in and is required to consolidate under GAAP.  All of the
liabilities included have been deemed to have a Level 1 designation.
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The following table summarizes the changes in White Mountains� Level 3 fair value measurements for the three months ended March 31, 2009:

Millions
Fixed

Maturities

Common
equity

securities

Convertible
fixed

maturities
Other

investments Total
Balance at January 1, 2009 $ 156.4 $ 113.3 $ � $ 402.4 $ 672.1
Total realized and unrealized
losses (3.6) (3.6) � (44.3) (51.5)
Purchases 16.4 � .7 45.5 62.6
Sales (17.1) (.4) � (22.2) (39.7)
Transfers in 57.9 � � � 57.9
Transfers out (39.4) � � � (39.4)
Balance at March 31, 2009 $ 170.6 $ 109.3 $ .7 $ 381.4 $ 662.0

Transfers into Level 3 measurements for fixed maturities relate primarily to securities as of the quarter end for which observable inputs were
unavailable. Such securities were manually priced using a combination of market inputs such as benchmark interest rates, market comparables
and/or broker quotes. Transfers out of Level 3 measurements for fixed maturity investments relate to securities that were manually priced in the
prior period but have been priced using observable inputs in the current period.

The following table summarizes the amount of total gains (losses) included in earnings attributable to the change in unrealized gains (losses) for
Level 3 assets for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Millions 2009 2008
Fixed maturities $ 9.9 $ (3.9)
Common equity securities (2.7) (2.8)
Convertible fixed maturities � �
Other long-term investments (13.7) (17.8)
Total change in unrealized losses - Level 3 assets $ (6.5) $ (24.5)

Note 5.  Debt

Refer to the Company�s 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K for a fuller discussion regarding White Mountains� debt obligations as of December
31, 2008. White Mountains� debt outstanding as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 consisted of the following:

Millions
March 31,

2009
December 31,

2008
OBH Senior Notes, at face value (1) $ 665.3 $ 676.0
Unamortized original issue discount (.8) (.9)
OBH Senior Notes, carrying value 664.5 675.1
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WMRe Senior Notes, at face value 400.0 400.0
Unamortized original issue discount (1.0) (1.0)
WMRe Senior Notes, carrying value 399.0 399.0

WTM Bank Facility 200.0 200.0
Mortgage Note 40.6 40.8
Sierra Note (2) 31.1 31.1
Atlantic Specialty Note 14.0 16.0
Total debt $ 1,349.2 $ 1,362.0

(1) During the first quarter of 2009, OneBeacon repurchased $10.6 face value of its outstanding OneBeacon U.S. Holdings, Inc. (�OBH�)
Senior Notes for $8.1, which resulted in a $2.5 gain on extinguishment of debt.

(2) Fully indemnified by Berkshire in connection with the Berkshire Exchange
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Note 6.  Income Taxes

The Company is domiciled in Bermuda and has subsidiaries domiciled in the United States and several other countries.  The majority of White
Mountains� worldwide operations are taxed in the United States.  Income earned or losses incurred by non-U.S. companies will generally be
subject to an overall effective tax rate lower than that imposed by the United States.

White Mountains� income tax expense (benefit) for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 represented an effective tax rate of 25.4%
and (31.8)%.  For the three months ended March 31, 2009, White Mountains� effective tax rates are different from the U.S. statutory rate of 35%
primarily due to income generated in jurisdictions other than the United States.  For the three months ended March 31, 2008, White Mountains�
effective tax rates are different from the U.S. statutory rate of 35% primarily due to income generated in jurisdictions other than the United
States, withholding taxes, non-deductible dividends and accretion on the Berkshire Preferred Stock.

In arriving at the effective tax rate for the three months ended March 31, 2009, White Mountains is treating the change in unrealized investment
gains (losses) and realized investment gains (losses) as discrete items separate from the other components of pre-tax income (loss). Therefore,
the benefit of these net gains (losses) is calculated at the statutory rate applicable to the jurisdiction in which the gains (losses) are recorded. The
majority of investment assets incurring current period net gains (losses) for the three months ended March 31, 2009 are in the U.S. and Sweden,
and are taxed at the statutory rates of 35% and 26.3%. The changes in unrealized investment gains (losses) and realized investment gains (losses)
are treated as discrete items due to the inability to reliably estimate these amounts for the full year.

White Mountains records a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets if it becomes more likely than not that all or a portion of a deferred
tax asset will not be realized. Changes in valuation allowances from period to period are included in the income tax expense in the period of
change. In determining whether or not a valuation allowance, or change therein, is warranted, White Mountains considers factors such as prior
earnings history, expected future earnings, carry-back and carry-forward periods and strategies that if executed would result in the realization of
a deferred tax asset. As of March 31, 2009, the net U.S. deferred tax assets were approximately $497.0 million. During the next twelve months,
it is possible that certain planning strategies will no longer be sufficient to utilize the entire deferred tax asset, which could result in material
changes to White Mountains� deferred tax assets and tax provision.  Utilization of the deferred tax asset is dependent on future profitability and
generation of net capital gains.

Under FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (�FIN 48�), White Mountains classifies all interest and penalties
on unrecognized tax benefits as part of income tax expense.  With few exceptions, White Mountains is no longer subject to U.S. federal, state or
non-U.S. income tax examinations for years before 2003.

In the second quarter of 2006, the Internal Revenue Service (�IRS�) commenced an examination of income tax returns for 2003 through 2004 for
certain U.S. subsidiaries of OneBeacon, White Mountains Re and Esurance. On January 22, 2009, the Company received Form 4549-A (Income
Tax Examination Changes) from the IRS relating to the examination of tax years 2003 and 2004.  The IRS is asserting that subsidiaries of the
Company owe an additional $65.7 million of tax.  The estimated total assessment, including interest, withholding tax and utilization of tax
credits is $132.3 million.  The Company disagrees with the adjustments proposed by the IRS and is vigorously defending its position.  The
timing of the resolution of these issues is uncertain; however, it is reasonably possible that the resolution could occur within the next 12 months. 
White Mountains does not expect the resolution of this examination to result in a material change to its financial position.
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In October 2008, the IRS commenced an examination of certain of White Mountains� U.S. subsidiaries� income tax returns for 2005 through
2006.  As of March 31, 2009, the IRS has not proposed any significant adjustments to taxable income as a result of the 2005 through 2006 audit. 
However, White Mountains does not expect to receive any adjustments that would result in a material change to its financial position.
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Note 7.  Weather Contracts

For the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, Galileo recognized $2.7 million and $4.0 million of net gains on its weather and weather
contingent derivatives portfolio.  As of March 31, 2009 and 2008, Galileo had unamortized deferred gains of $4.0 million and $4.6 million.

The fair values of Galileo�s risk management products are subject to change in the near-term and reflect management�s best estimate based on
various factors including, but not limited to, realized and forecasted weather conditions, changes in interest or foreign currency exchange rates
and other market factors. Estimating the fair value of derivative instruments that do not have quoted market prices requires management�s
judgment in determining amounts that could reasonably be expected to be received from or paid to a third party to settle the contracts. Such
amounts could be materially different from the amounts that might be realized in an actual transaction to settle the contract with a third party.
Because of the significance of the unobservable inputs used to estimate the fair value of Galileo�s weather risk contracts, the fair value
measurements of the contracts are deemed to be Level 3 measurements in the FAS 157 fair value hierarchy.

Galileo�s weather risk management contracts are summarized in the following table:

Three Months Ended March 31,
Millions 2009 2008
Net liability for weather derivative contracts as of January 1 (1) $ 13.1 $ 17.9
Net consideration (paid) received during the period for new contracts (.2) 8.4
Net receipts (payments) on contracts settled during the period .3 (7.8)
Net decrease in fair value on settled and unsettled contracts (2.7) (4.0)
Net liability for weather derivative contracts as of March 31 (2) $ 10.5 $ 14.5

(1) Includes unamortized deferred gains of $5.1 and $2.9 as of January 1, 2009 and 2008.

(2) Includes unamortized deferred gains of $4.0 and $4.6 as of March 31, 2009 and 2008.

The following table summarizes the maturity of contracts outstanding as of March 31, 2009:

Millions < 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years > 5 Years Total
Net asset for contracts actively quoted $ � $ � $ � $ � $ �
Net liability for contracts using internal pricing
models 5.8 4.7 � � 10.5
Total net liability for weather contracts outstanding $ 5.8 $ 4.7 $ � $ � $ 10.5(1)

(1) Includes $4.0 in unamortized deferred gains.
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NOTE 8. Variable Annuity Reinsurance

White Mountains has entered into agreements to reinsure death and living benefit guarantees associated with certain variable annuities in Japan.
At March 31, 2009, the total guarantee value was approximately ¥ 244 billion (approximately $2.5 billion at exchange rates on that date). The
collective account values of the underlying variable annuities were approximately 81% of the guarantee value at March 31, 2009. The following
table summarizes the pre-tax operating results of WM Life Re for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Millions 2009 2008
Fees, included in other revenues $ 6.8 $ 6.6
Change in fair value of variable annuity liability, included in other revenues 31.0 (78.3)
Change in fair value of derivatives and foreign exchange on related excess margin
accounts, included in other revenues (1) (70.1) 56.5
Other investment income and (losses) gains (.9) �
Total revenues (33.2) (15.2)
Change in fair value of variable annuity death benefit liabilities, included in other
expenses 3.8 (4.7)
Death benefit claims paid, included in other expenses (.5) �
General and administrative expenses (1.6) (1.0)
Pre-tax loss $ (31.5) $ (20.9)

(1) The exposure on foreign currency denominated excess margin account deposits is economically hedged with derivative instruments. The
change in fair value of the derivative instruments as well as the foreign currency gains/losses are both reported in Other Revenues. The foreign
currency (loss) gain on excess margin account deposits was $(17.0) and $0.7 at March 31, 2009 and 2008.

All of White Mountains� variable annuity reinsurance liabilities ($432.3 million) were classified as Level 3 measurements at March 31, 2009.
The following table summarizes the changes in White Mountains� variable annuity reinsurance guarantee liabilities and derivative instruments for
the quarter ended March 31, 2009:

Millions

(Guarantee
Liabilities)

Level 3

Derivative
Instruments
Level 3 (1)

Derivative
Instruments
Level 2 (2)

Derivative
Instruments
Level 1 (3)

Net Derivative
Assets

(Guarantee
Liabilities)

Balance at January 1, 2009 $ (467.1) $ 198.3 $ 5.0 $ (24.9) $ (288.7)
Purchases � 8.8 � � 8.8
Realized and unrealized gains
(losses) 34.8 (15.7) (6.4) (31.0) (18.3)
Transfers in (out) � � � � �
Sales/settlements � � � 11.6 11.6
Balance at March 31, 2009 $ (432.3) $ 191.4 $ (1.4) $ (44.3) $ (286.6)

(1) Comprises OTC instruments.
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(2) Comprises interest rate swaps. Fair value measurement based upon bid/ask pricing quotes for similar instruments that are actively traded.

(3) Comprises exchange traded equity index, foreign currency and interest rate futures. Fair value measurements based upon quoted prices for
identical instruments that are actively traded.

The following summarizes realized and unrealized derivative gains (losses) recognized in other revenues for the quarter ended March 31, 2009
and 2008 and carrying value at March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, by type of instrument:

Gains (losses) recognized Carrying value
Type of Instrument (Millions) 2009 2008 2009 2008
Fixed income/Interest rate $ (11.5 ) $ 2.7 $ (3.2 ) $ (4.3 )
Foreign exchange (72.3 ) 19.1 37.4 60.2
Equity 30.7 34.0 111.5 122.5
Total $ (53.1 ) $ 55.8 $ 145.7 $ 178.4
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WM Life Re enters into both over-the-counter (�OTC�) and exchange traded derivative contracts to economically hedge the liability from the
variable annuity benefit guarantee.  In the case of OTC derivatives, WM Life Re has exposure to credit risk for amounts that are uncollateralized
by counterparties. WM Life Re�s internal risk management guidelines establish net counterparty exposure thresholds that take into account
over-the-counter counterparties� credit ratings. WM Life Re has entered into master netting agreements with certain of its counterparties whereby
the collateral provided (held) is calculated on a net basis. The net collateral held under this arrangement was $7.3 million at March 31, 2009.

The following summarizes collateral provided to WM Life Re from counterparties:

Millions March 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Short term investments $ 11.0 $ 10.6
Fixed maturity securities 7.3 53.7
Total $ 18.3 $ 64.3

Collateral held by or provided by WM Life Re in the form of fixed maturity securities comprise U.S. Treasury securities, which are recorded at
fair value. Collateral in the form of short-term investments consists of money-market instruments, carried at amortized cost which approximates
fair value.

The following summarizes the fair value, collateral held and net exposure on OTC derivative instruments recorded within other assets:

Millions March 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Fair value of OTC derivative instruments $ 197.2 $ 209.1
Collateral held (18.3) (64.3)
Net exposure on fair value of OTC instruments $ 178.9 $ 144.8

The following table summarizes uncollateralized amounts due under WM Life Re�s OTC derivative contracts as of March 31, 2009:

Counterparty (Millions)
Uncollateralized balance

as of March 31, 2009 S&P Rating(1)
Bank of America (3) $ 51.5 A+
Barclays 44.2 A+
Citigroup (3) 44.2 A
Other 39.0 (2)
Total $ 178.9

(1) �AA+� is the second highest of twenty-one creditworthiness ratings, �A+� is the fifth highest of twenty-one creditworthiness ratings, A is the
sixth highest of twenty-one creditworthiness ratings.

(2) The ratings of the counterparties included in �Other� were A (46%), A+ (34%) and AA+ (20%).

(3) Collateral provided (held) calculated under master netting arrangement.
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The OTC derivative contracts are subject to restrictions on liquidation of the instruments and distribution of proceeds under collateral
agreements.  In addition to the OTC contracts, WM Life Re held cash and short-term investments posted as collateral to its reinsurance
counterparties as follows:

Millions March 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Cash $ 255.2 $ 225.7
Short-term investments 40.8 30.3
Total $ 296.0 $ 256.0
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Note 9. Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share amounts are based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding including unvested restricted
shares which are considered participating securities.  Diluted earnings (loss) per share amounts are based on the weighted average number of
common shares including unvested restricted shares and the net effect of potentially dilutive common shares outstanding.  The following table
outlines the Company�s computation of earnings (loss) per share for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2009 2008
Basic earnings (loss) per share numerators (in millions):
Income (loss) before extraordinary item $ 30.3 $ (61.0)
Extraordinary item - excess of fair value of acquired net assets
over cost � 4.2
Net income (loss) 30.3 (56.8)
Dividends declared and paid (8.9) (21.2)
Undistributed earnings (loss) $ 21.4 $ (78.0)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share numerators (in millions):
Income (loss) before extraordinary item $ 30.3 $ (61.0)
Extraordinary item - excess of fair value of acquired net assets
over cost � 4.2
Net income (loss) 30.3 (56.8)
Dividends declared and paid (8.9) (21.2)
Undistributed earnings (loss) $ 21.4 $ (78.0)
Basic earnings (loss) per share denominators (in thousands):
Average common shares outstanding during the period 8,766 10,562
Average unvested restricted shares (1) 59 50
Basic earnings (loss) per share denominator 8,825 10,612
Diluted earnings (loss) per share denominator (in thousands):
Average common shares outstanding during the period 8,766 10,562
Average unvested restricted shares (1) 59 50
Average outstanding dilutive options to acquire common shares
(2) 1 �
Diluted earnings (loss) per share denominator 8,826 10,612
Basic earnings (loss) per share (in dollars):
Income (loss) before extraordinary item $ 3.44 $ (5.78)
Extraordinary item - excess of fair value of acquired assets over
cost � .40
Net income (loss) 3.44 (5.38)
Dividends declared and paid (1.00) (2.00)
Undistributed earnings (loss) $ 2.44 $ (7.38)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share (in dollars)
Income (loss) before extraordinary item $ 3.44 $ (5.78)
Extraordinary item - excess of fair value of acquired assets over
cost � .40
Net income (loss) 3.44 (5.38)
Dividends declared and paid (1.00) (2.00)
Undistributed earnings (loss) $ 2.44 $ (7.38)
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(1) Restricted shares outstanding vest either in equal annual installments, upon a stated date or upon the occurrence of a specified event (see
Note 12).

(2) The diluted earnings per share denominator for the three months ended March 31, 2009 includes 6,000 common shares issuable upon
exercise of incentive options at an average stock price of $179.02 per common share. The diluted (loss) per share denominator for the three
months ended March 31, 2008 does not include common shares issuable upon exercise of incentive options as they are anti-dilutive to the
calculation (see Note 12).
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Note 10. Segment Information

White Mountains has determined that its reportable segments are OneBeacon, White Mountains Re, Esurance and Other Operations. White
Mountains has made its segment determination based on consideration of the following criteria: (i) the nature of the business activities of each of
the Company�s subsidiaries and affiliates; (ii) the manner in which the Company�s subsidiaries and affiliates are organized; (iii) the existence of
primary managers responsible for specific subsidiaries and affiliates; and (iv) the organization of information provided to the Board of Directors.
Significant intercompany transactions among White Mountains� segments have been eliminated herein. Financial information for White
Mountains� segments follows:

Millions OneBeacon
White

Mountains Re Esurance
Other

Operations Total
Three months ended March 31, 2009
Earned insurance and reinsurance premiums $ 487.8 $ 227.4 $ 196.2 $ �$ 911.4
Net investment income 21.9 29.4 6.1 3.7 61.1
Net realized and unrealized investment gains (losses) (5.9) (20.1) 3.7 (1.0) (23.3)
Other revenue - foreign currency translation gain � 5.4 � � 5.4
Other revenue 9.4 11.0 13.9 (22.4) 11.9
Total revenues 513.2 253.1 219.9 (19.7) 966.5
Losses and LAE 288.0 109.9 145.3 � 543.2
Insurance and reinsurance acquisition expenses 95.9 47.4 38.9 � 182.2
Other underwriting expenses 72.7 24.2 18.5 � 115.4
General and administrative expenses 5.5 18.7 9.2 17.2 50.6
Amortization of AFI purchase accounting
adjustments � � 5.3 � 5.3
Accretion of fair value adjustment to loss and LAE
reserves 1.4 1.1 � � 2.5
Interest expense on debt 10.9 6.6 � 1.4 18.9
Total expenses 474.4 207.9 217.2 18.6 918.1
Pre-tax income (loss) $ 38.8 $ 45.2 $ 2.7 $ (38.3) $ 48.4

Millions OneBeacon
White

Mountains Re Esurance
Other

Operations Total
Three months ended March 31, 2008
Earned insurance and reinsurance premiums $ 455.3 $ 266.8 $ 207.0 $ �$ 929.1
Net investment income 50.1 50.5 7.9 8.3 116.8
Net realized and unrealized investment losses (55.4) (52.5) (7.1) (3.0) (118.0)
Other revenue � foreign currency translation loss � (13.1) � � (13.1)
Other revenue 3.6 .2 3.1 16.2 23.1
Total revenues 453.6 251.9 210.9 21.5 937.9
Losses and LAE 300.9 168.2 168.4 1.2 638.7
Insurance and reinsurance acquisition expenses 84.7 55.6 46.4 � 186.7
Other underwriting expenses 70.1 27.0 19.0 .7 116.8
General and administrative expenses 2.9 5.1 .6 48.1 56.7
Accretion of fair value adjustment to loss and LAE
reserves 3.0 1.2 � � 4.2
Interest expense on debt 11.5 6.9 � 1.0 19.4
Interest expense - dividends on preferred stock 7.1 � � � 7.1
Interest expense - accretion on preferred stock 10.5 � � � 10.5
Total expenses 490.7 264.0 234.4 51.0 1,040.1
Pre-tax loss $ (37.1) $ (12.1) $ (23.5) $ (29.5) $ (102.2)

Edgar Filing: WHITE MOUNTAINS INSURANCE GROUP LTD - Form 10-Q

45



22

Edgar Filing: WHITE MOUNTAINS INSURANCE GROUP LTD - Form 10-Q

46



Table of Contents

Note 11. Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates

White Mountains� investments in unconsolidated affiliates represent investments in other companies in which White Mountains has a significant
voting and economic interest but does not control the entity.

Symetra

At March 31, 2009, White Mountains owned 24% of the common shares of Symetra on a fully converted basis, consisting of 17.4 million
common shares and warrants to acquire an additional 9.5 million common shares. White Mountains accounts for its investment in common
shares of Symetra using the equity method of accounting and accounts for its Symetra warrants under FAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities, recording the warrants at fair value with changes in fair value recognized through the income statement as a
realized investment gain or loss. Symetra�s warrants are not publicly traded. Accordingly, the fair value measurement of the warrants is based on
unobservable inputs and is classified as a Level 3 measurement.

The following table summarizes amounts recorded by White Mountains relating to its investment in Symetra:

2009 2008
Common Common

Millions Shares Warrants Total Shares Warrants Total
Carrying value of investment in Symetra as
of January 1 $ 54.0 $ 27.3 $ 81.3 $ 241.3 $ 77.3 $ 318.6
Equity in earnings of Symetra (1) 1.3 � 1.3 .7 � .7
Net unrealized losses from Symetra�s fixed
maturity portfolio (18.0) � (18.0) (20.7) � (20.7)
Increase (Decrease) in value of warrants � .4 .4 � (4.3) (4.3)
Carrying value of investment in Symetra as
of March 31 (2) $ 37.3 $ 27.7 $ 65.0 $ 221.3 $ 73.0 $ 294.3

(1) Equity in earnings is net of tax of $0.

(2) Includes White Mountains� equity in net unrealized losses from Symetra�s fixed maturity portfolio of $218.3 as of March 31, 2009 and
$26.3 as of March 31, 2008.

Pentelia

White Mountains acquired a 33% equity interest in Pentelia Capital Management (�PCM�) for $1.6 million in April 2007. This investment is
accounted for under the equity method.  White Mountains� investment in PCM as of March 31, 2009 was $1.6 million.

Delos
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White Mountains owns approximately 18% of Delos and accounts for its investment in Delos under the equity method. For the three months
ended March 31, 2009, White Mountains recorded $(0.6) million of pre-tax equity in earnings and $(0.3) million of pre-tax equity in unrealized
investment losses from its investment in Delos. White Mountains� investment in Delos at March 31, 2009 totaled $33.1 million.

Answer Financial

In January 2008, White Mountains acquired 42% of the outstanding debt and equity of AFI. In conjunction with this transaction, AFI completed
a restructuring. During the first quarter of 2008, White Mountains contributed an additional $2.5 million to AFI.  White Mountains accounted for
its investment in AFI under the equity method at March 31, 2008.  For the three months ended March 31, 2008, White Mountains recorded $0.1
million of after-tax equity in earnings from its investment in AFI. As of April 1, 2008, White Mountains� ownership in AFI increased to 68.9%. 
As a result, White Mountains now accounts for its investment in AFI as a consolidated subsidiary.  On July 30, 2008, White Mountains acquired
the remaining equity and debt interests in AFI from the minority owner.

23

Edgar Filing: WHITE MOUNTAINS INSURANCE GROUP LTD - Form 10-Q

48



Table of Contents

Note 12. Employee Share-Based Incentive Compensation Plans

White Mountains� Long-Term Incentive Plan (the �WTM Incentive Plan�) provides for grants of various types of share-based and non share-based
incentive awards to key employees and service providers of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries. White Mountains� share-based
compensation incentive awards consists of performance shares, restricted shares and stock options.

Share-Based Compensation Based on White Mountains Common Shares

WTM Performance Shares

Performance shares are conditional grants of a specified maximum number of common shares or an equivalent amount of cash.  Performance
share awards vest, subject to the attainment of performance goals, at the end of a three-year period and are valued based on the market value of
common shares at the time awards are paid.  The following table summarizes performance share activity for the three months ended March 31,
2009 and 2008 for WTM performance shares granted under the WTM Incentive Plan and phantom WTM performance shares granted under
subsidiary plans (�WTM Phantom Share Plans�):

Three Months Ended March 31,
2009 2008

Millions, except share amounts

Target
Performance

Shares
Outstanding

Accrued
Expense

Target
Performance

Shares
Outstanding

Accrued
Expense

Beginning of period 164,179 $ 4.4 146,742 $ 47.3
Payments and deferrals (1) (51,960) � (43,608) (15.5)
New awards 66,373 � 61,165 �
Forfeitures and cancellations (3,451) (.2) (1,303) �
Expense recognized � (3.2) � 8.3
Ending March 31, 175,141 $ 1.0 162,996 $ 40.1

(1) There were no payments made in 2009 for the 2006-2008 performance cycle.  WTM performance share payments in 2008 for the
2005-2007 performance cycle ranged from 64% to 101% of target. Amounts include deposits of payout amounts into White Mountains� deferred
compensation plan at the election of participants.

If 100% of the outstanding WTM performance shares had been vested on March 31, 2009, the total additional compensation cost to be
recognized would have been $10.2 million, based on current accrual factors (common share price and payout assumptions).

For the 2005-2007 performance cycle, the Company issued common shares for 1,700 performance shares earned and all other performance
shares earned were settled in cash or by deferral into certain non-qualified deferred compensation plans of the Company or its subsidiaries.
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Performance shares granted under the WTM Incentive Plan

The following table summarizes performance shares outstanding and accrued expense for performance shares awarded under the Incentive Plan
at March 31, 2009 for each performance cycle:

Millions, except share amounts

Target
Performance

Shares
Outstanding

Accrued
Expense

Performance cycle:
2007 � 2009 45,311 $ �
2008 � 2010 52,102 �
2009 � 2011 57,530 .9
Sub-total 154,943 .9
Assumed forfeitures (3,874) �
Total at March 31, 2009 151,069 $ .9
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Phantom Performance Shares granted under WTM Phantom Share Plans

The following table summarizes phantom WTM performance shares outstanding and accrued expense for awards made under the WTM
Phantom Share Plans at March 31, 2009 for each performance cycle:

Millions, except share amounts

Target WTM
Phantom

Performance
Shares

Outstanding
Accrued
Expense

Performance cycle:
2007 � 2009 7,081 $ �
2008 � 2010 8,765 �
2009 � 2011 8,843 .1
Sub-total 24,689 .1
Assumed forfeitures (617) �
Total at March 31, 2009 24,072 $ .1

Restricted Shares

At March 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company had 90,120 and 53,200 unvested restricted shares outstanding under the WTM Incentive Plan. The
following outlines the unrecognized compensation cost associated with the outstanding restricted share awards made under the WTM Incentive
Plan for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008:

Three Months Ended March 31,
2009 2008

Millions, except share amounts
Restricted

Shares

Unamortized
Grant Date
Fair Value

Restricted
Shares

Unamortized
Grant Date
Fair Value

Non-vested, beginning of period 53,200 $ 24.2 54,000 $ 26.7
Granted 45,320 9.2 6,200 3.1
Vested (8,400) � (7,000) �
Forfeited � � � �
Expense recognized � (1.9) � (1.2)
Non-vested at March 31 90,120 $ 31.5 53,200 $ 28.6

During the first quarter of 2009, White Mountains issued 40,820 restricted shares that cliff vest on December 31, 2010 and 4,500 restricted
shares that vest in equal installments at December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013.  If a recipient of the restricted shares that are scheduled to cliff vest
on December 31, 2010 is terminated without cause after December 31, 2009 (as defined in the WTM LTIP), 50% of the restricted shares will
vest.

During the first quarter of 2008, White Mountains awarded 4,200 restricted shares that vest in equal annual installments over three years and
2,000 restricted shares that cliff vest in February 2011 based on continuous service throughout the award period.
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During the first quarter of 2007, White Mountains made the following grants of restricted shares to the Company�s Chairman and CEO in
connection with his hiring: (1) 35,000 restricted shares that vest in equal annual installments over five years; (2) 15,000 restricted shares that
vest in the event of a change in control of the Company before January 20, 2012. During the first quarter of 2007, White Mountains also
awarded 4,000 restricted shares to other employees that cliff vest in February 2010 based on continuous service by the employee throughout the
award period.

Of the unrecognized compensation cost at March 31, 2009, $22.9 million is expected to be recognized ratably over the remaining vesting periods
and $8.6 million would be recognized in the event of a change in control before January 20, 2012. Upon vesting, all restrictions initially placed
upon the restricted shares lapse.
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Non-Qualified Options

In January 2007, the Company issued 200,000 seven-year Non-Qualified Options to the Company�s Chairman and CEO that vest in equal annual
installments over five years and that have an initial exercise price of $650 per common share that escalates at an annual rate of 5% less the
annual regular dividend rate (the �Escalator�). The fair value of the Non-Qualified Options at the grant date was estimated using a closed-form
option model using an expected volatility assumption of 29.7%, a risk-free interest rate assumption of 1.1% (or 4.7% less the Escalator), a
forfeiture assumption of 0%, an expected dividend rate assumption of 1.4% and a term assumption of seven years. The fair value of the
Non-Qualified Options was $27.2 million at the grant date and is required to be recognized ratably over the five year vesting period. For the
three months ended March 31, 2009 White Mountains recognized $1.4 million of expense associated with its Non-Qualified Options. For the
three months ended March 31, 2008, White Mountains recognized $1.4 million of expense associated with its Non-Qualified Options. At
March 31, 2009, 80,000 Non-Qualified Options were exercisable at a strike price of $710.01.

Incentive Options

At March 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company had 6,000 and 8,700 Incentive Options outstanding which were granted to certain key employees on
February 28, 2000 (the grant date) under the WTM Incentive Plan. The 81,000 Incentive Options originally granted were issued at an exercise
price equal to the market price of the Company�s underlying common shares on February 27, 2000. The exercise price escalates by 6% per
annum over the life of the Incentive Options. The Incentive Options vest ratably over a ten-year service period. Upon the adoption of FAS 123R,
the grant date fair value of the awards as originally disclosed for FAS 123, adjusted for estimated future forfeitures, became the basis for
recognition of compensation expense for the Incentive Options. The fair value of each Incentive Option award at the grant date was estimated
using a closed-form option model using an expected volatility assumption of 18.5%, a risk-free interest rate assumption of 6.4% and an expected
term of ten years.

The following table summarizes the Company�s Incentive Option activity for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Millions, except share and per share amounts 2009 2008
Opening balance - outstanding Options 6,000 9,900
Forfeited � (600)
Exercised � (600)
Ending balance - outstanding Options 6,000 8,700
Outstanding Options - exercisable 3,000 2,700
Exercise price - outstanding Options at beginning of period $ 177.76 $ 167.70
Value of Options exercised (1) � $ .2
Exercise price - outstanding Options at March 31, $ 180.32 $ 170.11

(1) Amount is equal to the number of options exercised multiplied by amount the ending market value exceeds the strike price on the date of
exercise.

The outstanding Incentive Options were not in-the-money at March 31, 2009.  White Mountains expects 3,000 Incentive Options to become
exercisable in 2009 and will issue common shares when the Incentive Options are exercised.  The Incentive Options expire in February 2010.
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Share-Based Compensation Based on OneBeacon Ltd. Common Shares

The OneBeacon Long-Term Incentive Plan (the �OneBeacon Incentive Plan�) provides for grants of various types of share-based and non
share-based incentive awards to key employees of OneBeacon Ltd. and certain of its subsidiaries.  OneBeacon�s share-based incentive awards
consist of OneBeacon performance shares, stock options granted in connection with OneBeacon�s initial public offering and restricted stock
units.

OneBeacon Performance Shares

OneBeacon performance shares are conditional grants of a specified maximum number of common shares or an equivalent amount of cash. 
OneBeacon performance share awards vest, subject the attainment of performance goals, at the end of a three-year period and are valued based
on the market value of OneBeacon common shares at the time awards are paid.  The following table summarizes performance share activity for
the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 for OneBeacon performance shares granted under the OneBeacon Incentive Plan:

Three Months Ended March 31,
2009 2008

Millions, except share amounts

Target
Performance

Shares
Outstanding

Accrued
Expense

Target
Performance

Shares
Outstanding

Accrued
Expense

Beginning of period 2,212,313 $ 4.6 1,063,690 $ 9.3
Payments and deferrals (1) (137,400) � (122,859) (1.7)
New awards 364,982 � 1,327,142 �
Forfeitures and cancellations (121,046) (.3) (136,079) (.4)
Expense recognized � 1.4 � (.3)
Ending March 31, 2,318,849 $ 5.7 2,131,894 $ 6.9

(1) OneBeacon performance share payments in 2009 for the 2007-2008 performance cycle were at 1.4% of target. OneBeacon performance
share payments in 2008 for the 2007 performance cycle were at 62.9% of target. Amounts include deposits into OneBeacon�s deferred
compensation plan.

If 100% of the outstanding OneBeacon performance shares had been vested on March 31, 2009, the total additional compensation cost to be
recognized would have been $10.4 million, based on current accrual factors (common share price and payout assumptions).

The following table summarizes OneBeacon performance shares outstanding awarded under the OneBeacon Incentive Plan at March 31, 2009
for each performance cycle:

Millions, except share amounts

Target OneBeacon
Performance

Shares
Outstanding

Accrued
Expense
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Performance cycle:
2007 � 2009 713,070 $ .3
2008 � 2010 1,300,255 5.2
2009 � 2011 364,982 .3
Sub-total 2,378,307 5.8
Assumed forfeitures (59,458) (.1)
Total at March 31, 2009 2,318,849 $ 5.7
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Non-Qualified Options

In November 2006, in connection with its initial public offering, OneBeacon Ltd. issued to its key employees 1,420,000 fixed-price
Non-Qualified Options to acquire OneBeacon Ltd. common shares. The following tables summarize option activity for the three months ended
March 31, 2009 and 2008:

Three Months Ended March 31,
2009 2008

Millions, except share amounts

Target
Options

Outstanding
Accrued
Expense

Target
Options

Outstanding
Accrued
Expense

Beginning of period 1,237,872 $ 2.5 1,324,306 $ 1.4
New awards � � � �
Forfeitures and cancellations (89,522) � (66,215) �
Exercised � � � �
Expense recognized � .3 � .3
Ending March 31, 1,148,350 $ 2.8 1,258,091 $ 1.7

The options vest in equal installments on each of the third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of their issuance and expire five and a half years from
the date of issuance. The fair value of each option award at grant was estimated using a Black-Scholes option pricing model using an expected
volatility assumption of 30%, a risk-free interest rate assumption of 4.6%, a forfeiture assumption of 5%, an expected dividend rate assumption
of 3.4% and an expected term assumption of 5.5 years. The options originally had a per share exercise price of $30.00. On May 27, 2008, the
OneBeacon Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors (the �OB Compensation Committee�) amended the exercise price to $27.97 as a
result of the $2.03 per share special dividend paid in the first quarter of 2008. The compensation expense associated with the options and the
incremental fair value of the award modification is being recognized ratably over the remaining period.

Restricted Stock Units

The Non-Qualified Options granted by OneBeacon Ltd., in connection with its initial public offering, did not include a mechanism in the options
to reflect the contribution to total return from the regular quarterly dividend. As a result, during the first quarter of 2008, OneBeacon granted
116,270 Restricted Stock Units (�RSUs�) to actively employed option holders. The RSUs vest one-third on each of November 9, 2009, 2010 and
2011 subject to, for each vesting tranche of units, the attainment of 4% growth in OneBeacon�s adjusted book value per share from January 1,
2008 through the end of the calendar year immediately following the applicable vesting date. Upon vesting, the RSUs will be mandatorily
deferred into one of OneBeacon�s non-qualified deferred compensation plans and will be paid out in 2012 in cash or shares at the discretion of
the OB Compensation Committee. The expense associated with the RSUs is being recognized over the vesting period. For the three months
ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, OneBeacon recognized $0.1 million and $0.2 million of expense.  As of March 31, 2009, 105,790 RSUs were
outstanding.
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Item 2. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion contains �forward-looking statements�. White Mountains intends statements that are not historical in nature, which
are hereby identified as forward-looking statements, to be covered by the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995. White Mountains cannot promise that its expectations in such forward-looking statements will turn out to be correct. White Mountains�
actual results could be materially different from and worse than its expectations. See �FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS� for specific
important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in forward-looking statements.

The following discussion also includes four non-GAAP financial measures - adjusted comprehensive net income, White Mountains� adjusted
book value per share, total adjusted capital and OneBeacon�s adjusted book value per share - that have been reconciled to their most
comparable GAAP financial measures (see page 49). White Mountains believes these measures to be more relevant than comparable GAAP
measures in evaluating White Mountains� financial performance and condition.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2009 AND 2008

Overview

White Mountains ended the first quarter of 2009 with an adjusted book value per share of $352, which was essentially flat from December 31,
2008, including dividends. White Mountains reported an adjusted comprehensive net loss of $9 million in the first quarter of 2009 compared to
break-even in the first quarter of 2008.

OneBeacon ended the first quarter of 2009 with a book value per share of $12.30, which was a 3% increase from December 31, 2008, including
dividends. OneBeacon reported a GAAP combined ratio of 94% for the first quarter of 2009 compared to 100% in the first quarter of 2008.
Both periods included 3 points of net favorable loss reserve development, while the first quarter of 2009 had less than one point of catastrophe
losses compared to 4 points of catastrophe losses in the first quarter of 2008, primarily related to tornados in the Southeastern United States.
White Mountains Re reported a GAAP combined ratio of 80% for the first quarter 2009 compared to 94% for the first quarter 2008.  Both
periods experienced relatively benign weather and light catastrophe activity. The improved combined ratio in the first quarter of 2009 was driven
by 3 points of favorable loss reserve development in the first quarter of 2009 compared to 12 points of adverse loss development in the first
quarter of 2008.  Esurance reported a GAAP combined ratio of 103% in the first quarter of 2009 compared to 113% in the first quarter 2008.
This improvement was due mainly to selective rate increases in late 2007 and early 2008, as well as lower claims frequency resulting from less
driving by insureds as a result of the recessionary environment and due to lower acquisition expenses. Operating income at AFI improved to $2
million in the first quarter of 2009 compared to less than $1 million the fourth quarter of 2008. White Mountains� GAAP pre-tax total return on
invested assets was -0.1% for the first quarter of 2009 compared to 0.3% for the first quarter of 2008.  The total investment portfolio, excluding
currency movements, managed a small positive return of 0.5%. Additionally, White Mountains� results for the first quarter of 2009 included $40
million of unrealized foreign currency exchange losses reported as other comprehensive losses, resulting primarily from the strengthening of the
U.S. dollar in comparison to the Swedish krona. This compares to $58 million of unrealized foreign currency exchange gains reported in the first
quarter of 2008 resulting primarily from the weakening of the U.S. dollar in comparison to the Swedish krona.

Total net written premiums decreased to $992 million for the first quarter of 2009 compared to $1,016 million in the comparable 2008 period, as
an increase at OneBeacon was more than offset by decreases at White Mountains Re and Esurance. OneBeacon�s net written premiums increased
10% to $469 million in the first quarter of 2009, driven primarily by premiums from its collector car and boat business that was started in the
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second quarter of 2008. White Mountains Re�s net written premiums decreased 14% to $309 million in the first quarter of 2009. A significant
portion of the decline was in property catastrophe exposed business where White Mountains Re continues to reduce its net exposures. Esurance�s
net written premiums decreased 7% to $214 million in the first quarter of 2009 as lower advertising spending and higher rates contributed to
reduced new business sales volume.
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Adjusted Book Value Per Share

The following table presents White Mountains� adjusted book value per share and reconciles this non-GAAP measure to the most comparable
GAAP measure. (See NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES on page 49).

March 31,
2009

Dec. 31,
2008

March 31,
2008

Book value per share numerators (in millions):

White Mountains common shareholders� equity $ 2,866.2 $ 2,898.8 $ 4,679.2
Benefits to be received from share obligations under employee stock option
plans (1) � 1.1 1.5
Remaining accretion of subsidiary preferred stock to face value (2) � � (8.3)
Book value per share numerator 2,866.2 2,899.9 4,672.4
Equity in net unrealized losses from Symetra�s fixed maturity portfolio 218.3 197.3 26.3
Adjusted book value per share numerator $ 3,084.5 $ 3,097.2 $ 4,698.7
Book value per share denominators (in thousands of shares):

Common shares outstanding 8,854.1 8,808.8 10,570.2
Share obligations under employee stock option plans (1) � 6.0 8.7
Book value per share denominator 8,854.1 8,814.8 10,578.9
Unearned restricted shares (83.4) (42.6) (50.4)
Adjusted book value per share denominator 8,770.7 8,772.2 10,528.5
Book value per common share $ 323.71 $ 328.97 $ 441.67
Adjusted book value per common share $ 351.68 $ 353.07 $ 446.28

(1) Assumes conversion of in-the-money stock options.

(2) Remaining adjustment of subsidiary preferred stock to face value, which is based on White Mountains� ownership interest in OneBeacon
Ltd. of 74.7% as of March 31, 2008.

Noncontrolling Interests

During the first quarter of 2009, White Mountains adopted FAS No. 160.  As a result, White Mountains has changed the presentation of its
financial statements for prior periods to conform to the required presentation, as follows:  noncontrolling interests (previously referred to as
�minority interests�) are now presented on the balance sheets within equity, separate from White Mountains� shareholders� equity, and the portion of
net income, extraordinary item and comprehensive income attributable to White Mountains� common shareholders and the noncontrolling
interests are presented separately on the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.  The adoption of FAS 160 did not
impact White Mountains� adjusted book value per share.
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Review of Consolidated Results

White Mountains� consolidated financial results for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 follow:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Millions 2009 2008
Gross written premiums $ 1,145.6 $ 1,178.3
Net written premiums $ 992.3 $ 1,015.6

Revenues
Earned insurance and reinsurance premiums $ 911.4 $ 929.1
Net investment income 61.1 116.8
Net realized and unrealized investment losses (23.3) (118.0)
Other revenue 17.3 10.0
Total revenues 966.5 937.9
Expenses
Losses and LAE 543.2 638.7
Insurance and reinsurance acquisition expenses 182.2 186.7
Other underwriting expenses 115.4 116.8
General and administrative expenses 50.6 56.7
Amortization of AFI purchase accounting adjustments 5.3 �
Accretion of fair value adjustment to loss and LAE reserves 2.5 4.2
Interest expense � debt 18.9 19.4
Interest expense - dividends on preferred stock � 7.1
Interest expense - accretion on preferred stock � 10.5
Total expenses 918.1 1,040.1
Pre-tax income (loss) $ 48.4 $ (102.2)
Income tax (expense) benefit (12.3) 32.5
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates .9 .4
Excess of fair value of acquired assets over cost � 4.2
Net income (loss) before noncontrolling interests $ 37.0 $ (65.1)
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interest (6.7) 8.3
Net income (loss) attributable to White Mountains common shareholders $ 30.3 $ (56.8)
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax (57.2) 36.0
Comprehensive net loss $ (26.9) $ (20.8)
Comprehensive net (loss) income attributable to noncontrolling interests (.3) .3
Comprehensive net loss attributable to White Mountains common shareholders $ (27.2) $ (20.5)
Change in net unrealized losses from Symetra�s fixed maturity portfolio 18.0 20.7
Adjusted comprehensive net (loss) income $ (9.2) $ .2

Consolidated Results �Three Months Ended March 31, 2009 versus Three Months Ended March 31, 2008

White Mountains� total revenues increased 3% to $967 million in the first quarter of 2009 compared to $938 million in the first quarter of 2008.
Earned premiums were down 2% in the first quarter of 2009 compared to the first quarter of 2008, as increased earned premiums at OneBeacon
were more than offset by decreases at White Mountains Re and Esurance. Net investment income decreased 48% to $61 million in the first
quarter of 2009 compared to $117 million in the first quarter of 2008, due to lower overall portfolio yields, shifts in portfolio mix to lower risk,
lower yield investments and a decrease in the overall invested asset base following the Berkshire Exchange. White Mountains reported net

Edgar Filing: WHITE MOUNTAINS INSURANCE GROUP LTD - Form 10-Q

61



realized and unrealized investment losses of $23 million in the first quarter of 2009 compared to $118 million of such losses in the first quarter
of 2008.
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Other revenues increased $7 million to $17 million in the first quarter of 2009 compared to the first quarter of 2008, due in part to $5 million of
foreign currency translation gains at White Mountains Re in the first quarter of 2009 compared to $13 million of foreign currency losses reported
in the first quarter of 2008. In addition, other revenues in the first quarter of 2009 included $13 million in fee revenues from AFI, which White
Mountains first consolidated in the second quarter of 2008. Other revenues also included $33 million and $15 million in losses in the first
quarters of 2009 and 2008, respectively, from WM Life Re due mainly to the net effect of the increase in the fair value of WM Life Re�s variable
annuity liabilities exceeding the increase in the fair value of the related derivative contracts that economically hedge the liabilities (See Note 8).

White Mountains� total expenses decreased 12% to $918 million in the first quarter of 2009 compared to $1,040 million in the first quarter of
2008. Losses and LAE expenses decreased $96 million, or 15%, due primarily to lower catastrophe losses and adverse loss reserve development
in the first quarter of 2009 as compared to the first quarter of 2008.  Insurance and reinsurance acquisition expenses and other underwriting
expenses in the first quarter of 2009 were flat on relatively level earned premiums.

White Mountains� income tax expense (benefit) for the first quarter of 2009 and 2008 represented an effective tax rate of 25.4% and (31.8)%. 
For the three months ended March 31, 2009, White Mountains� effective tax rates are different from the U.S. statutory rate of 35% primarily due
to income generated in jurisdictions other than the United States.  For the three months ended March 31, 2008, White Mountains� effective tax
rates are different from the U.S. statutory rate of 35% primarily due to income generated in jurisdictions other than the United States,
withholding taxes, non-deductible dividends and accretion on the Berkshire Preferred Stock.

I. Summary of Operations By Segment

White Mountains conducts its operations through four segments: (1) OneBeacon, (2) White Mountains Re, (3) Esurance and (4) Other
Operations. White Mountains manages all of its investments through its wholly-owned subsidiary, WM Advisors, therefore, a discussion of
White Mountains� consolidated investment operations is included after the discussion of operations by segment. White Mountains� segment
information is presented in Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

OneBeacon

Financial results for OneBeacon for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 follow:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Millions 2009 2008
Gross written premiums $ 531.1 $ 500.3
Net written premiums $ 469.4 $ 425.7

Earned insurance and reinsurance premiums $ 487.8 $ 455.3
Net investment income 21.9 50.1
Net realized and unrealized investment losses (5.9) (55.4)
Other revenue 9.4 3.6
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Total revenues 513.2 453.6

Losses and LAE 288.0 300.9
Insurance and reinsurance acquisition expenses 95.9 84.7
Other underwriting expenses 72.7 70.1
General and administrative expenses 5.5 2.9
Accretion of fair value adjustment to loss and LAE reserves 1.4 3.0
Interest expense on debt 10.9 11.5
Interest expense - dividends on preferred stock � 7.1
Interest expense - accretion on preferred stock � 10.5
Total expenses 474.4 490.7
Pre-tax income (loss) $ 38.8 $ (37.1)
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The following table presents OneBeacon�s adjusted book value per common share and reconciles this non-GAAP measure to book value per
common share, the most comparable GAAP measure.

(Millions, except per share amounts)
March 31,

2009
Dec. 31,

2008
March 31,

2008
OneBeacon book value per share numerators:

OneBeacon common shareholders� equity $ 1,169.3 $ 1,155.1 $ 1,613.0
Remaining accretion of subsidiary preferred stock to face value � � (11.1)
Adjusted OneBeacon common shareholders� equity 1,169.3 1,155.1 1,601.9
OneBeacon Ltd. common shares outstanding 95.1 95.1 96.0
OneBeacon book value per common share $ 12.30 $ 12.15 $ 16.80
OneBeacon adjusted book value per common share $ 12.30 $ 12.15 $ 16.69

The following tables provide OneBeacon�s GAAP ratios, net written premiums and earned insurance premiums for the three months ended
March 31, 2009 and 2008:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2009
Specialty Commercial Personal Total(1)

GAAP Ratios:
Loss and LAE 32% 58% 89% 59%
Expense 39% 37% 28% 35%
Total Combined 71% 95% 117% 94%
Net written premiums $ 178.7 $ 158.9 $ 131.7 $ 469.4
Earned premiums $ 162.7 $ 174.8 $ 150.2 $ 487.8

Three Months Ended March 31, 2008
Specialty Commercial Personal Total(1)

GAAP Ratios:
Loss and LAE 55% 72% 65% 66%
Expense 32% 38% 31% 34%
Total Combined 87% 110% 96% 100%
Net written premiums $ 110.9 $ 169.7 $ 144.7 $ 425.7
Earned premiums $ 110.4 $ 181.0 $ 163.6 $ 455.3

(1) Includes results from run-off operations.

OneBeacon Results - Three Months Ended March 31, 2009 versus Three Months Ended March 31, 2008

Overview

OneBeacon ended the first quarter of 2009 with a book value per share of $12.30, a 3% increase for the three months ended March 31, 2009, and
a 21% decrease from its adjusted book value per share at March 31, 2008, in each case including dividends. OneBeacon�s GAAP combined ratio
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decreased to 94% for the first quarter of 2009 from 100% for the first quarter of 2008. Both periods included 3 points of net favorable loss
reserve development primarily in specialty lines and in commercial lines.  In the first quarter of 2009, favorable loss reserve development in
specialty lines and in commercial lines was partially offset by adverse loss reserve development in personal lines, primarily related to personal
injury protection litigation at AutoOne.  The first quarter of 2009 had less than one point of catastrophe losses, while the first quarter of 2008
included 4 points of catastrophe losses, primarily related to tornados in the Southeastern United States.

OneBeacon�s net written premiums increased 10% in the first quarter of 2009 to $469 million, compared to $426 million in the first quarter of
2008.  This increase was due to increased premiums in specialty lines, primarily from OneBeacon�s collector car and boat business that it began
writing in the second quarter of 2008, Entertainment Brokers International Insurance Services (�EBI�), which OneBeacon acquired in the third
quarter of 2008, and from OneBeacon Professional Partners (�OBPP�).   This increase was partially offset by decreases in personal lines, where
$14 million of premiums were ceded under a new quota share treaty designed to reduce property catastrophe exposure from homeowners
business written in the Northeast (see Personal lines discussion below), and in commercial lines.
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Specialty lines. Net written premiums for specialty lines increased 61% to $179 million in the first quarter of 2009 from $111 million in the first
quarter of 2008. The increase was primarily due to $28 million in net written premiums from OneBeacon�s collector car and boat business that it
began writing in the second quarter of 2008. The increase was also due to $15 million in writings from EBI, which OneBeacon acquired in the
third quarter of 2008, as well as a $14 million increase from OBPP and an $11 million increase from Specialty Accident and Health.

The specialty lines combined ratio for the first quarter of 2009 decreased to 71% from 87% for the first quarter of 2008. The loss and LAE ratio
decreased 23 points to 32% while the expense ratio increased 7 points to 39%. The decrease in the loss and LAE ratio was mainly due to 17
points of favorable loss reserve development in the first quarter of 2009 related to lower than expected severity in professional liability,
compared with 3 points of favorable loss reserve development in the first quarter of 2008, also primarily related to professional liability. 
Further, the current accident year loss and LAE ratio including catastrophes decreased 10 points as compared to the prior year period due to
better current accident year loss results across all specialty lines of business. The increase in the expense ratio was mainly due to changes in mix
of business within the specialty lines businesses and the mix of products offered within those businesses. OneBeacon�s collector car and boat
business and some of its other newer specialty lines businesses pay higher commissions than OneBeacon�s older specialty lines businesses.

Commercial lines. Net written premiums for commercial lines decreased 6% to $159 million in the first quarter of 2009 from $170 million in the
first quarter of 2008. The decrease was primarily due to a $15 million decrease in OneBeacon�s traditional middle market division, reflecting the
more competitive marketplace, partially offset by increased writings at OneBeacon Specialty Property.

The commercial lines combined ratio for the first quarter of 2009 decreased to 95% from 110% for the first quarter of 2008. The loss and LAE
ratio decreased 14 points to 58%, while the expense ratio decreased 1 point to 37%. The decrease in the loss and LAE ratio was due to lower
catastrophe losses and increased favorable loss reserve development.  The first quarter of 2009 included 1 point of catastrophe losses compared
to 8 points in the first quarter of 2008, which primarily related to tornados in the southeastern United States. The first quarter of 2009 included
10 points of favorable loss reserve development compared to 5 points in the first quarter of 2008. In addition, current accident year
non-catastrophe losses decreased 3 points as compared to the first quarter of 2008, primarily related to lower than expected severity on
commercial multi-peril non-catastrophe losses.

Personal lines. Net written premiums for personal lines decreased 9% to $132 million in the first quarter of 2009 from $145 million in the first
quarter of 2008. In traditional personal lines, net written premium decreased 8% to $101 million. In an effort to further reduce its property
catastrophe exposure in the Northeast, OneBeacon entered into a 30% quota share agreement with a group of reinsurers that runs from January 1,
2009 through December 31, 2009. During the first quarter of 2009, OneBeacon ceded approximately $14 million of written premiums from its
Northeast homeowners business written through OneBeacon Insurance Company and its subsidiary companies, along with Adirondack
Insurance and New Jersey Skylands Insurance Association in New York and New Jersey, respectively. Further, net written premiums at
AutoOne decreased 14% to $31 million due to declines in New York�s assigned risk pool. With respect to the New York assigned risk pool,
market trends indicate that assigned risk volumes are expected to further decline to approximately $133 million in 2009, which would be down
from $150 million in 2008, $179 million in 2007 and $253 million in 2006. OneBeacon expects a reduction in AutoOne�s premium volume
reflective of these trends.

The personal lines combined ratio for the first quarter of 2009 increased to 117% from 96% for the first quarter of 2008. The loss and LAE ratio
increased 24 points to 89%, while the expense ratio decreased by 3 points to 28%. The increase in the loss and LAE ratio was primarily due to
19 points of adverse loss reserve development in the first quarter of 2009, primarily related to an increased level of litigation activity resulting in
higher litigation-related expenses as well as higher claim settlement costs with respect to personal injury protection litigation at AutoOne. The
first quarter of 2008 included 1 point of favorable loss reserve development, primarily related to automobile liability losses in traditional
personal lines. The decrease in the expense ratio was primarily due to lower policy acquisition expenses as a result of the quota share agreement
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White Mountains Re

Financial results and GAAP ratios for White Mountains Re for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 follow:

Three Months Ended March 31,
Millions 2009 2008
Gross written premiums $ 400.3 $ 446.9
Net written premiums $ 309.3 $ 359.6

Earned insurance and reinsurance premiums $ 227.4 $ 266.8
Net investment income 29.4 50.5
Net realized and unrealized investment losses (20.1) (52.5)
Other revenue - foreign currency translation gains (losses) 5.4 (13.1)
Other revenue -Tuckerman Fund II (1) 12.3 �
Other revenue (1.3) .2
Total revenues 253.1 251.9

Losses and LAE 109.9 168.2
Insurance and reinsurance acquisition expenses 47.4 55.6
Other underwriting expenses 24.2 27.0
General and administrative expenses - Tuckerman Fund II (1) 11.5 �
General and administrative expenses 7.2 5.1
Accretion of fair value adjustment to losses and LAE reserves 1.1 1.2
Interest expense on debt 6.6 6.9
Total expenses 207.9 264.0
Pre-tax income (loss) $ 45.2 $ (12.1)

GAAP ratios:
Losses and LAE 48% 63%
Expense 32% 31%
Total Combined 80% 94%

(1) Tuckerman Fund II was transferred from Other Operations to White Mountains Re, effective June 30, 2008. Therefore the
consolidated results of Tuckerman Fund II are included in the table above for the first quarter of 2009 and are included in the
Other Operation segment in the first quarter of 2008.

White Mountains Re Results - Three Months Ended March 31, 2009 versus Three Months Ended March 31, 2008

White Mountains Re�s GAAP combined ratio decreased to 80% for the first quarter of 2009 from 94% for the first quarter of 2008. Both periods
experienced relatively benign weather and light catastrophe activity. The improvement in the combined ratio was primarily due to 3 points ($6
million) of favorable loss reserve development in the first quarter of 2009 compared to 12 points ($33 million) of adverse loss reserve
development in the first quarter of 2008, which was primarily a result of construction defect claims from accident years 2003 and prior.  The first
quarter of 2009 also included 5 points ($12 million) of catastrophe losses, net of reinsurance and reinstatement premiums, compared to 3 points
($9 million) of catastrophe losses, net of reinsurance and reinstatement premiums, in the first quarter of 2008.  The first quarter of 2009
catastrophe losses were primarily related to European windstorm Klaus, whereas the first quarter 2008 catastrophe losses were primarily related
to European windstorm Emma.
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White Mountains Re�s gross written premiums decreased 10% to $400 million in the first quarter 2009 from $447 million in the first quarter
2008. Net written premiums decreased 14% to $309 million in the first quarter 2009 from $360 million in the first quarter 2008. These declines
were due mainly to reductions in global net property writings and U.S. casualty writings as well as the effect of foreign currency exchange due
to the weakening of the Swedish krona against the U.S. dollar.  The decrease in global property business reflects White Mountains Re�s reduction
in net peak zone property catastrophe exposures as part of its capital and risk management strategy.  The reduction in U.S. casualty business is
due to pricing, terms and conditions for certain accounts that no longer meet White Mountains Re�s underwriting guidelines, as well as higher
ceding company retentions.
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White Mountains Re�s other revenues consist primarily of $5 million of foreign currency translation gains recorded in the first quarter 2009 as
compared to a loss of $13 million in the first quarter 2008, primarily the result of the weakening of the Swedish krona as discussed above.  In
addition, White Mountains Re recorded $12 million of other revenues in the first quarter of 2009 related to the consolidation of Tuckerman Fund
II, which was transferred to White Mountains Re from the Other Operations segment, effective June 30, 2008.

White Mountains Re�s insurance and reinsurance acquisition expenses decreased 15% to $47 million in the first quarter 2009 from $56 million in
the first quarter 2008. The decrease is in-line with the overall decline in premium volume discussed above.

White Mountains Re�s other underwriting expenses decreased by $3 million, primarily due to foreign currency translation due to the weakening
of the Swedish krona to U.S. dollar exchange rate as discussed above.  In addition, headcount has been reduced by 8% in comparison to last
year.

White Mountains Re�s general and administrative expenses increased to $19 million in the first quarter 2009 from $5 million in the first quarter
2008, primarily due to $12 million of expenses related to the consolidation of Tuckerman Fund II as discussed above.

Esurance

Financial results and GAAP ratios for Esurance for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 follow:

Three Months Ended March 31,
Millions 2009 2008
Gross written premiums $ 214.2 $ 231.2
Net written premiums $ 213.6 $ 230.3

Earned insurance and reinsurance premiums $ 196.2 $ 207.0
Net investment income 6.1 7.9
Net realized and unrealized investment gains (losses) 3.7 (7.1)
Other revenue 13.9 3.1
Total revenues 219.9 210.9

Losses and LAE 145.3 168.4
Insurance and reinsurance acquisition expenses 38.9 46.4
Other underwriting expenses 18.5 19.0
General and administrative expenses 9.2 .6
Amortization of AFI purchase accounting adjustments 5.3 �
Total expenses 217.2 234.4
Pre-tax income (loss) $ 2.7 $ (23.5)

GAAP ratios:
Losses and LAE 74% 81%
Expense 29% 32%
Total Combined 103% 113%
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Esurance Results - Three Months Ended March 31, 2009 versus Three Months Ended March 31, 2008

Esurance�s GAAP combined ratio decreased to 103% for the first quarter of 2009 from 113% for the first quarter of 2008.  The improved results
for 2009 were driven by better loss results and lower acquisition costs.  The loss ratio decreased 7 points to 74% for the first quarter of 2009
from 81% in the first quarter of 2008. This was largely due to selective rate increases in late 2007 and early 2008, along with lower claims as
rising unemployment and reduced economic activity led to fewer cars on the road.  The expense ratio decreased to 29% from 32%, primarily due
to lower acquisition expenses driven by a reduction in advertising spending.
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Net written premium decreased 7% to $214 million in the first quarter of 2009 from $230 million during the first quarter of 2008. Lower
advertising spending and higher rates contributed to reduced new business sales volume. Esurance experienced a slight increase in cancellations
for non-payment of premium, as more customers are finding it difficult to pay their auto insurance bills. Total revenues for the segment
were $220 million for the first quarter, similar to performance in the first quarter of 2008. Other revenues increased to
$14 million in the first quarter of 2009 from $3 million in the first quarter of 2008, primarily due to the acquisition of
AFI in the second quarter of 2008.  AFI had $13 million of commissions on new and renewal business in the first
quarter of 2009. General and administrative expenses increased to $9 million during the quarter, primarily due to the
addition of AFI�s operational expenses of $11 million.  As of March 31, 2009, the Esurance segment had 759,000
policies-in-force, including 289,000 policyholders at AFI.  The Esurance segment added approximately 14,000
policies-in-force (approximately 8,000 at Esurance and approximately 6,000 at AFI) during the first quarter, reversing
the trend seen in 2008.

Esurance wrote business in 30 states during the first quarter of 2009, the largest of which were California (with 23% of direct written premium),
Florida (14%), New York (8%), Texas (5%) and Pennsylvania (4%). AFI sells policies in all 50 states plus the District of Columbia. For the first
quarter of 2009, AFI�s largest states were California (16% of policies-in-force), Texas (7%), Florida (7%), Pennsylvania (4%) and Georgia (4%).

Other Operations

Other Operations consists of the operations of the Company, the Company�s intermediate holding companies, the consolidated results of the
Tuckerman Fund I and Tuckerman Fund II (until its transfer to the White Mountains Re segment, effective June 30, 2008), the International
American Group (until its disposition in October 2008), WM Advisors and White Mountains� investments in unconsolidated
affiliates. The Other Operations segment also includes the results of WM Life Re and Galileo. White Mountains
continues to explore options to limit the cost of running off WM Life Re�s contracts and has ceased writing new
weather derivative contracts at Galileo.

A summary of White Mountains� financial results from its Other Operations segment for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008
follows:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Millions 2009 2008
Net investment income $ 3.7 $ 8.3
Net realized and unrealized investment losses (1.0) (3.0)
Other revenue - Tuckerman Fund I and II (1) 6.2 24.4
Other revenue (28.6) (8.2)
Total revenues (19.7) 21.5

Losses and LAE � 1.2
Other underwriting expenses � .7
General and administrative expenses - Tuckerman Fund I and II (1) 6.2 24.6
General and administrative expenses 11.0 23.5
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Interest expense - debt 1.4 1.0
Total expenses 18.6 51.0
Pre-tax loss $ (38.3) $ (29.5)

(1) Tuckerman Fund II was transferred from Other Operations to White Mountains Re, effective June 30, 2008. Therefore the
consolidated results of Tuckerman Fund II are included in the table above through that date and are included in the White
Mountains Re segment from July 1, 2008 forward. The consolidated results of Tuckerman Fund I are included in all periods
presented above.

Other Operations Results - Three Months Ended March 31, 2009 versus Three Months Ended March 31, 2008

White Mountains� Other Operations segment�s pre-tax loss in the first quarter of 2009 was $38 million, compared to $30 million in the first
quarter of 2008.  WM Life Re reported $32 million in pre-tax losses in the first quarter of 2009 compared to $21 million of pre-tax losses in the
first quarter of 2008 (See Note 8).  The losses in WM Life Re primarily resulted from the effect of the continuing volatile investment market
conditions on the valuation of WM Life Re�s derivative assets and liabilities during the quarter.
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II. Summary of Investment Results

Investment Returns

For purposes of discussing rates of return, all percentages are presented gross of management fees and trading expenses in order to produce a
more relevant comparison to benchmark returns, while all dollar amounts are presented net of any management fees and trading expenses. A
summary of White Mountains� consolidated pre-tax investment results and gross investment returns versus typical benchmarks for the three
months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 follows:

Pre-tax investment results

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Millions 2009 2008
Net investment income $ 61.1 $ 116.8
Net realized and unrealized investment losses (23.3) (118.0)
Net unrealized foreign currency (losses) gains on investments (51.5) 30.8
Total GAAP pre-tax investment (losses) gains $ (13.7) $ 29.6

Gross investment returns and benchmark returns

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2009 2008
Fixed maturity investments 1.0% 1.9%
Short-term investments .1 1.0
Total fixed maturities .7 1.7
Barclay�s U.S. Intermediate Aggregate Index .9 2.4

Convertible securities .5 -2.8
Common stocks -12.0 -5.8
Other long-term investments -3.8 -3.4
Total equities, convertible securities and other long-term
investments -5.9 -4.7
S&P 500 Index (total return) -11.0 -9.4

Total consolidated portfolio -.1% .3%

White Mountains� GAAP total return on invested assets for the first quarter of 2009 was -0.1% compared to 0.3% in the first quarter of 2008. The
total investment portfolio, excluding currency movements, managed a small positive return of 0.5%. White Mountains has continued to avoid
the large, permanent credit losses that have recently been reported by many financial institutions. The GAAP total return on fixed maturity
investments, including mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities and short term investments, was 0.7% for the first quarter of 2009
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compared to 1.7% in the first quarter of last year. The fixed income portfolio was up 1.5% in local currencies, compared to a Barclays U.S.
Intermediate Aggregate return of 0.9%. White Mountains� equity and convertible security portfolio return of -5.9% in the first quarter of 2009,
which outperformed the S&P 500 return of -11.0%.  White Mountains continued to de-risk its portfolios during the quarter, selling
approximately $310 million of equities and convertibles and $75 million of non-agency residential mortgage-backed securities. 
Total equity exposure is now 11% of GAAP invested assets (8% excluding convertibles).  Net investment income was
$61 million in the first quarter of 2009, down from $117 million.  The decline was primarily due to lower overall
portfolio yields, shifts in portfolio mix to lower risk, lower yield investments and a decrease in the overall invested
asset base following the Berkshire Exchange.
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Mortgage-backed, Asset-backed Securities

White Mountains purchases commercial and residential mortgage-backed securities to maximize its fixed income portfolio�s risk adjusted returns
and diversify the portfolio risk from primarily corporate credit risk to a mix of credit and cash flow risk. White Mountains is not an originator of
residential mortgage loans and does not hold any residential mortgage-backed securities categorized as sub-prime as of March 31, 2009. In
addition, White Mountains� investments in hedge funds, limited partnerships and private equities contain negligible amounts of sub-prime
mortgage-backed securities at March 31, 2009. White Mountains is not directly exposed to potential losses on sub-prime mortgage-backed
securities, other than approximately $3 million of sub-prime mortgage-backed securities that are in the collateral account under its securities
lending programs at March 31, 2009. White Mountains considers sub-prime mortgage-backed securities to be those that are issued from
dedicated sub-prime shelf registrations, dedicated second-lien shelf registrations (i.e., White Mountains considers investments backed primarily
by second-liens to be a sub-prime risk regardless of credit score or other metrics) or otherwise have underlying loan pools that exhibit weak
credit characteristics.

There are also mortgage-backed securities that White Mountains categorizes as �non-prime� (also called �Alt A� or �A-�) that are backed by collateral
that has overall credit quality between prime and sub-prime, based on a review of the characteristics of their underlying mortgage loan pools,
such as credit scores and financial ratios. As of March 31, 2009, $24 million of White Mountains� mortgage-backed securities holdings were
classified as non-prime. All of these non-prime securities have the highest rating ascribed by Standard & Poors (�AAA�). White Mountains does
not own any collateralized debt obligations, including residential mortgage-backed collateralized debt obligations.

The following table summarizes White Mountains� asset-backed securities holdings at fair value as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008:

March 31, December 31,
Millions 2009 2008
Mortgage-backed securities:
Agency (1)
GNMA $ 635.7 $ 964.4
FNMA 93.1 114.7
FHLMC 232.4 232.9
Total Agency 961.2 1,312.0
Non-agency:
Residential 286.6 398.2
Commercial 454.7 435.0
Total Non-agency 741.3 833.2

Total mortgage-backed securities 1,702.5 2,145.2
Other asset-backed securities:
Credit card 53.7 82.2
Auto 43.9 13.8
Other .9 �
Total other asset-backed securities 98.5 96.0
Total asset-backed securities (2) $ 1,801.0 $ 2,241.2

(1) Represents publicly traded residential mortgage-backed securities which carry the full faith and credit guaranty of the U.S. government
(i.e., GNMA) or are guaranteed by a government sponsored entity (e.g., FNMA, FHLMC).

(2) Of White Mountains� total asset-backed securities, approximately 95% and 99% as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008,
respectively, have the highest rating ascribed by Moody�s (�Aaa�) or Standard & Poors (�AAA�).
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Securities Lending

White Mountains is currently exploring options for exiting its securities lending programs. White Mountains participated in securities lending
programs through both OneBeacon and White Mountains Re as a mechanism for generating additional investment income.  Under the security
lending arrangements, certain securities White Mountains owns are loaned to other institutions for short periods of time through a lending agent. 
The security lending counterparty is required to provide collateral for the loaned securities, which is then invested by the lending agent.  The
collateral is normally required at a rate of 102% of the fair value of the loaned securities. For OneBeacon�s program prior to February 2009 and
for White Mountains Re�s program, the collateral is fully controlled by the lending agent and may not be sold or re-pledged.
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The fair value of the securities lending collateral is recorded as both an asset and a liability, however, other than in the event of a default by the
borrower, the collateral is not available to White Mountains and will be remitted to the borrower by the lending agent upon return of the loaned
securities. Because of these restrictions, White Mountains considers White Mountains Re�s securities lending activities and OneBeacon�s security
lending activities prior to February 2009 to be non-cash transactions. In the event of a shortfall in the collateral amount required to be returned to
the security lending counterparty (e.g., as a result of investment losses), White Mountains is obligated to make up any deficiency.  The value that
can be loaned under White Mountains� securities lending programs cannot exceed approximately $170 million.

In February 2009, OneBeacon amended the terms of its securities lending program to give it more control over the investment of borrowers�
collateral and to segregate the assets supporting that collateral from a collective investment vehicle managed by the lending agent into a separate
account. Pursuant to the amendment, (i) the guidelines for the investment of any new cash collateral, as well as the reinvestment of cash, were
narrowed to permit investment in only cash equivalent securities, (ii) OneBeacon has the authority to direct the lending agent to both sell
specific collateral securities in its separate account and to not sell certain collateral securities which the lending agent proposes to sell, and
(iii) OneBeacon and the lending agent agreed to manage the securities lending program toward an orderly wind-down, which OneBeacon
believes will be completed over an approximately 1 to 2 year period.

As a result of this change, OneBeacon�s securities lending program is now recorded so that assets in the separate account are included within its
investment securities. Accordingly, purchases and sales of invested assets held in the separate account as well as changes in the payable to the
borrower for the return of collateral are reflected in the investing and financing sections of the cash flow statement commencing with the quarter
ended March 31, 2009. White Mountains has recorded an asset of $151 million (including $45 million within fixed maturities) for the value of
the collateral held and a liability of $161 million for the amount that is contractually due to the security lending counterparties upon the return of
the loaned securities.

White Mountains has some exposure to troubled financial services companies in the investments purchased with the collateral received under its
securities lending program. A portion of the collateral received for securities loaned out under the program was invested in formerly highly rated
troubled financial services companies and in highly rated sub-prime mortgage-backed securities. Additionally, there are approximately $3
million of sub-prime mortgage-backed securities at White Mountains Re that are in the securities lending collateral accounts at March 31, 2009.
At March 31, 2009, there was a $9 million collateral shortfall ($2 million at OneBeacon and $7 million at White Mountains Re) that relates
primarily to these securities.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Operating Cash and Short-term Investments

Holding company level.  The primary sources of cash for the Company and certain of its intermediate holding companies
are dividends and tax sharing payments received from its insurance and reinsurance operating subsidiaries, capital
raising activities, net investment income and proceeds from sales and maturities of holding company investments. The
primary uses of cash are repurchases of the Company�s and OneBeacon Ltd.�s common shares, payments on and
repurchases/retirements of its debt obligations, dividend payments to holders of the Company�s common shares, to
noncontrolling interest holders of OneBeacon Ltd.�s common shares and to holders of the WMRe Preference Shares,
purchases of investments, payments made to tax authorities, contributions to operating subsidiaries and holding
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company operating expenses.

Operating subsidiary level.  The primary sources of cash for White Mountains� insurance and reinsurance operating
subsidiaries are premium collections, net investment income, capital raising activities and proceeds from sales and
maturities of investments. The primary uses of cash are claim payments, policy acquisition costs, purchases of
investments, payments on and repurchases/retirements of its debt obligations, dividend and tax sharing payments
made to holding companies and operating expenses.

Both internal and external forces influence White Mountains� financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. Claim settlements,
premium levels and investment returns may be impacted by changing rates of inflation and other economic conditions. In many cases, significant
periods of time, ranging up to several years or more, may lapse between the occurrence of an insured loss, the reporting of the loss to White
Mountains and the settlement of the liability for that loss. The exact timing of the payment of claims and benefits cannot be predicted with
certainty. White Mountains� insurance and reinsurance operating subsidiaries maintain portfolios of invested assets with varying maturities and a
substantial amount of short-term investments to provide adequate liquidity for the payment of claims.

Management believes that White Mountains� cash balances, cash flows from operations, routine sales and maturities of investments and the
liquidity provided by the WTM Bank Facility are adequate to meet expected cash requirements for the foreseeable future on both a holding
company and insurance and reinsurance operating subsidiary level.
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Dividend Capacity

Under the insurance laws of the states and jurisdictions under which White Mountains� insurance and reinsurance operating subsidiaries are
domiciled, an insurer is restricted with respect to the timing and the amount of dividends it may pay without prior approval by regulatory
authorities. Accordingly, there can be no assurance regarding the amount of such dividends that may be paid by such subsidiaries in the future.
Following is a description of the dividend capacity of White Mountains� insurance and reinsurance operating subsidiaries and certain of its
intermediate holding companies:

OneBeacon:

Generally, OneBeacon�s regulated insurance operating subsidiaries have the ability to pay dividends during any 12-month period without the
prior approval of regulatory authorities in an amount equal to the greater of prior year statutory net income or 10% of prior year end statutory
surplus, subject to the availability of unassigned funds. Based upon December 31, 2008 statutory surplus of $1.4 billion, OneBeacon�s top tier
regulated insurance operating subsidiaries have the ability to pay approximately $136 million of dividends during 2009 without prior approval of
regulatory authorities, subject to the availability of unassigned funds. As of December 31, 2008, OneBeacon�s top tier regulated insurance
operating subsidiaries had $0.9 billion of unassigned funds. During the first quarter of 2009, OneBeacon�s regulated insurance operating
subsidiaries did not pay any dividends to their immediate parent.

During the first quarter of 2009, OneBeacon�s unregulated operating subsidiaries paid $3 million of dividends to their immediate parent.  At
March 31, 2009, OneBeacon�s unregulated operating subsidiaries had approximately $19 million of unrestricted cash.

During the first quarter of 2009, OneBeacon Ltd. paid $20 million of regular quarterly dividends to its common shareholders. White Mountains
received a total of $15 million of these dividends.

As of March 31, 2009, OneBeacon Ltd. and its intermediate holding companies had approximately $133 million of net unrestricted cash and
fixed maturity investments outside of its regulated and unregulated insurance operating subsidiaries.

White Mountains Re:

WMRe America has the ability to pay dividends during any 12-month period without the prior approval of regulatory authorities in an amount
equal to the lesser of net investment income, as defined by statute, or 10% of statutory surplus, in both cases as most recently reported to
regulatory authorities, subject to the availability of earned surplus. Based upon December 31, 2008 statutory surplus of $709 million, WMRe
America would have the ability to pay approximately $71 million of dividends during 2009 without prior approval of regulatory authorities,
subject to the availability of earned surplus. As of March 31, 2009, WMRe America had negative earned surplus. During the first quarter of
2009, WMRe America did not pay any dividends to its immediate parent.

In accordance with the provisions of Swedish law, WMRe Sirius can voluntarily transfer its pre-tax income, or a portion thereof, subject to
certain limitations, to its Swedish parent company to minimize taxes (referred to as a group contribution). In 2009, WMRe Sirius intends to
transfer approximately $60 million of its 2008 pre-tax income to its Swedish parent company as a group contribution.
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WMRe Sirius has the ability to pay dividends subject to the availability of unrestricted statutory surplus. Historically, WMRe Sirius has
allocated the majority of its pre-tax income, after group contributions to its Swedish parent company, to the Safety Reserve (see �Safety Reserve�
below). As of December 31, 2008, WMRe Sirius had $55 million of unrestricted statutory surplus (based on December 31, 2008 SEK to USD
exchange rate), which is available for distribution in 2009. During the first quarter of 2009, WMRe Sirius declared $35 million of dividends to
its immediate parent.

During 2009, WMRe Bermuda has the ability to make capital distributions without the prior approval of regulatory authorities, subject to
meeting all appropriate liquidity and solvency requirements, of up to $101 million, which is equal to 15% of December 31, 2008 statutory
capital excluding statutory surplus.  During the first quarter of 2009, WMRe Bermuda did not pay any dividends to its immediate parent.

During the first quarter of 2009, WMRUS did not pay any dividends to its immediate parent.  At March 31, 2009, WMRUS had $2 million of
unrestricted cash.

During the first quarter of 2009, White Mountains Re paid $108 million of dividends to its immediate parent, which included $55 million in cash
and $53 million of other assets.

As of March 31, 2009, White Mountains Re and its intermediate holding companies had approximately $45 million of net unrestricted cash and
fixed maturity investments outside of WMRe America, WMRe Sirius, WMRe Bermuda and WMRUS.
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Esurance:

Generally, Esurance�s regulated insurance operating subsidiaries have the ability to pay dividends during any 12-month period without the prior
approval of regulatory authorities in an amount equal to the lesser of prior year statutory net income or 10% of prior year end statutory surplus,
subject to the availability of unassigned funds. Based on upon 2008 statutory net income, Esurance�s top tier regulated insurance operating
subsidiary does not have the ability to pay dividends during 2009 without prior approval of regulatory authorities and subject to the availability
of unassigned funds. As of December 31, 2008, Esurance�s top tier regulated insurance operating subsidiary had $33 million of unassigned funds.

In addition, as of March 31, 2009, Esurance had approximately $7 million of net unrestricted cash and fixed maturity investments outside of its
regulated insurance operating subsidiaries, including AFI. During the first quarter of 2009, AFI paid a $3 million cash dividend to its immediate
parent.

Other Operations:

WM Advisors did not pay any dividends to its immediate parent during the first quarter of 2009.  As of March 31, 2009, WM Advisors had
approximately $29 million of unrestricted cash and fixed maturity investments.

As of March 31, 2009, the Company and its intermediate holding companies had approximately $112 million of net unrestricted cash and fixed
maturity investments included in its other operations segment.

Safety Reserve

In accordance with provisions of Swedish law, WMRe Sirius is permitted to transfer up to the full amount of its pre-tax income, subject to
certain limitations, into an untaxed reserve referred to as a safety reserve, which amounted to $1.1 billion at March 31, 2009. Under GAAP, an
amount equal to the safety reserve, net of the related deferred tax liability established at the Swedish tax rate of 26.3%, is classified as
shareholders� equity. Generally, this deferred tax liability is only required to be paid by WMRe Sirius if it fails to maintain predetermined levels
of premium writings and loss reserves in future years. As a result of the indefinite deferral of these taxes, Swedish regulatory authorities do not
apply any taxes to the safety reserve when calculating solvency capital under Swedish insurance regulations. Accordingly, under local statutory
requirements, an amount equal to the deferred tax liability on WMRe Sirius� safety reserve ($292 million at March 31, 2009) is included in
solvency capital. Access to the safety reserve is restricted to coverage of aggregate losses and requires the approval of Swedish regulatory
authorities. Similar to the approach taken by Swedish regulatory authorities, major rating agencies include the $1.1 billion balance of the safety
reserve, without any provision for deferred taxes, in WMRe Sirius� capital when assessing WMRe Sirius� financial strength.
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Insurance Float

Insurance float is an important aspect of White Mountains� insurance operations. Insurance float is money that an insurance company holds for a
limited time. In an insurance operation, float arises because premiums are collected before losses are paid. This interval can extend over many
years. During that time, the insurer invests the funds. When the premiums that an insurer collects do not cover the losses and expenses it
eventually must pay, the result is an underwriting loss, which is considered to be the cost of insurance float. The amount and cost of insurance
float for White Mountains is affected by underlying market conditions, as well as acquisitions or dispositions of insurance and reinsurance
businesses.

Although insurance float can be calculated using numbers determined under GAAP, insurance float is not a GAAP concept and, therefore, there
is no comparable GAAP measure.

One of the means by which White Mountains calculates its insurance float is by taking its net investment assets and subtracting its total adjusted
capital. The following table illustrates White Mountains� consolidated insurance float position as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008:

($ in millions)
March 31,

2009
December 31,

2008
Total investments $ 8,804.7 $ 9,002.7
Consolidated limited partnership investments(1) (30.3) (50.2)
Cash 448.8 409.6
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates 99.7 116.9
Equity in net unrealized losses from Symetra�s fixed maturity portfolio 218.3 197.3
Securities lending payable � OneBeacon (2) (48.6) �
Accounts receivable on unsettled investment sales 25.6 78.2
Accounts payable on unsettled investment purchases (23.5) (7.5)
Interest-bearing funds held by ceding companies (3) 118.4 123.7
Interest-bearing funds held under reinsurance treaties (4) (55.5) (54.7)
Net investment assets $ 9,557.6 $ 9,816.0

Total White Mountains shareholders� equity $ 2,866.2 $ 2,898.8
Noncontrolling interest�OneBeacon Ltd. 287.0 283.5
Noncontrolling interest�WMRe Preference Shares 250.0 250.0
Debt 1,349.2 1,362.0
Total capital (5) $ 4,752.4 $ 4,794.3
Equity in net unrealized losses from Symetra�s fixed maturity portfolio 218.3 197.3
Total adjusted capital $ 4,970.7 $ 4,991.6

Insurance float $ 4,586.9 $ 4,824.4

Insurance float as a multiple of total adjusted capital 0.9x 1.0x
Net investment assets as a multiple of total adjusted capital 1.9x 2.0x

Insurance float as a multiple of White Mountains shareholders� equity 1.6x 1.7x
Net investment assets as a multiple of White Mountains shareholders� equity 3.3x 3.4x
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(1) The noncontrolling portion of investments of consolidated limited partnerships has not been included in insurance float because
White Mountains does not have the ability to utilize the net assets supporting this noncontrolling interest.

(2) As of March 31, 2009, OneBeacon began classifying it securities lending collateral within its total investments.
(3) Excludes funds held by ceding companies from which White Mountains does not receive interest credits.
(4) Excludes funds held by White Mountains under reinsurance treaties for which White Mountains does not provide interest credits.
(5) The noncontrolling interest arising from White Mountains� investments in consolidated limited partnerships has not been included in

total capital because White Mountains does not have the ability to utilize the net assets supporting this noncontrolling interest.

White Mountains has historically obtained its insurance float primarily through acquisitions, as opposed to organic growth. It is White
Mountains� intention to generate low-cost float over time through a combination of acquisitions and/or by organic growth in its existing insurance
and reinsurance operations. However, White Mountains will seek to increase its insurance float organically only when market conditions allow
for an expectation of generating underwriting profits.
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Financing

The following table summarizes White Mountains� capital structure as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008:

March 31, December 31,
($ in millions) 2009 2008
OBH Senior Notes, carrying value $ 664.5 $ 675.1
WMRe Senior Notes, carrying value 399.0 399.0
WTM Bank Facility 200.0 200.0
Other debt 85.7 87.9
Total debt 1,349.2 1,362.0
Noncontrolling interest�OneBeacon Ltd. 287.0 283.5
Noncontrolling interest�WMRe Preference Shares 250.0 250.0
Total White Mountains shareholders� equity 2,866.2 2,898.8
Total capital(1) 4,752.4 4,794.3
Equity in net unrealized losses from Symetra�s fixed maturity portfolio 218.3 197.3
Total adjusted capital 4,970.7 $ 4,991.6
Total debt to total adjusted capital 27% 27%
Total debt and Preference Shares to total adjusted capital 32% 32%

(1) The noncontrolling interest arising from White Mountains� investments in consolidated limited partnerships has not been
included in total capital because White Mountains does not have the ability to utilize the assets supporting this noncontrolling
interest.

Management believes that White Mountains generally has the flexibility and capacity to obtain funds externally as needed through debt or equity
financing on both a short-term and long-term basis. However, given the recent disruptions in the capital markets, White Mountains can provide
no assurance that, if needed, it would be able to obtain additional debt or equity financing on satisfactory terms, if at all.

During the first quarter of 2009, OneBeacon repurchased $11 million face value of its outstanding OBH Senior Notes for $8 million, which
resulted in a $3 million gain on extinguishment of debt.

Refer to the Company�s 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K for a fuller discussion regarding White Mountains� debt obligations as of
December 31, 2008.

The WTM Bank Facility contains various affirmative, negative and financial covenants which White Mountains considers to be customary for
such borrowings and include maintaining certain minimum net worth and maximum debt to capitalization standards. Failure to meet one or more
of these covenants could result in an event of default, which ultimately could eliminate availability under these facilities and result in
acceleration of principal repayment on any amounts outstanding. At March 31, 2009, White Mountains was in compliance with all of the
covenants under the WTM Bank Facility, and anticipates it will continue to remain in compliance with these covenants for the foreseeable
future.
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The OBH Senior Notes and the WMRe Senior Notes were issued under indentures which contain restrictive covenants that, among other things,
limit the ability of the Company, OBH, WMRe Group and their respective subsidiaries to create liens and enter into sale and leaseback
transactions and limits the ability of the Company, OBH, WMRe Group and their respective subsidiaries to consolidate, merge or transfer their
properties and assets. The indentures do not contain any financial ratios or specified levels of net worth or liquidity to which the Company, OBH
or WMRe Group must adhere. At March 31, 2009, White Mountains was in compliance with all of the covenants under the OBH Senior Notes
and the WMRe Senior Notes, and anticipates it will continue to remain in compliance with these covenants for the foreseeable future.
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Cash Flows

Detailed information concerning White Mountains� cash flows during the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 follows:

For the three months ended March 31, 2009

Financing and Other Capital Activities

During the first quarter of 2009, the Company declared and paid a $9 million cash dividend to its common shareholders.

During the first quarter of 2009, OneBeacon Ltd. declared and paid a $20 million cash dividend to its common shareholders. White Mountains
received a total of $15 million of these dividends.

During the first quarter of 2009, OneBeacon repurchased $11 million face value of its outstanding OBH Senior Notes for $8 million.

During the first quarter of 2009, White Mountains Re paid $55 million of cash dividends to its immediate parent, which included $30 million
received from Galileo.

During the first quarter of 2009, AFI paid $3 million of dividends to its immediate parent.

During the first quarter of 2009, White Mountains contributed $83 million in cash to WM Life Re and $24 million in cash to Esurance.

Other Liquidity and Capital Resource Activities

During the first quarter of 2009, White Mountains made payments totaling $43 million, in cash or by deferral into certain non-qualified
compensation plans, to participants in the long-term incentive compensation plans of the Company and its subsidiaries.

For the three months ended March 31, 2008
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Financing and Other Capital Activities

During the first quarter of 2008, the Company drew the full $475 million available on WTM Bank Facility. The Company repaid $175 million
and $100 million of this amount during the second and third quarters of 2008, respectively.

During the first quarter of 2008, the Company declared and paid a cash dividend of $21 million to its common shareholders.

During the first quarter of 2008, OneBeacon Ltd. declared and paid cash dividends of $215 million to its common shareholders, including a $195
million special dividend and a $20 million regular quarterly dividend. White Mountains received a total of $161 million of these dividends.

During the first quarter of 2008, OneBeacon repurchased and retired 2.5 million of its Class A common shares for $53 million through its share
repurchase program.

During the first quarter of 2008, White Mountains Re paid $25 million of dividends to its immediate parent.

During the first quarter of 2009, White Mountains contributed $21 million in cash to Esurance.

Acquisitions and Dispositions

During the first quarter of 2008, White Mountains Re acquired Helicon Re Holdings, Ltd. for approximately $150 million.

During the first quarter of 2008, White Mountains acquired 42% of the outstanding debt and equity of AFI for $30 million.

Other Liquidity and Capital Resource Activities

During the first quarter of 2008, White Mountains made payments totaling $66 million, in cash or by deferral into certain non-qualified
compensation plans, to participants in the long-term incentive compensation plans of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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FAIR VALUE CONSIDERATIONS

On January 1, 2008, White Mountains adopted FAS 157, Fair Value Measurements. FAS 157 provides a revised definition of fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands financial statement disclosure requirements for fair value information. Under FAS
157, fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants (an exit price). The Statement establishes a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between inputs based on market data from
independent sources (�observable inputs�) and a reporting entity�s internal assumptions based upon the best information available when external
market data is limited or unavailable (�unobservable inputs�). The fair value hierarchy in FAS 157 prioritizes fair value measurements into three
levels based on the nature of the inputs. Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets have the highest priority (�Level 1�), followed by
observable inputs other than quoted prices including prices for similar but not identical assets or liabilities (�Level 2�), and unobservable inputs,
including the reporting entity�s estimates of the assumptions that market participants would use, having the lowest priority (�Level 3�).

White Mountains uses observable inputs for the majority of its investment portfolio. As of March 31, 2009, approximately 93% of the
investment portfolio recorded at fair value was priced based upon quoted market prices or other observable inputs. White Mountains uses
brokers and outside pricing services to assist in determining fair values. For investments in active markets, White Mountains uses the quoted
market prices provided by the outside pricing service to determine fair value. The outside pricing services used by White Mountains have
indicated that they will only provide prices where observable inputs are available. In circumstances where quoted prices are unavailable, White
Mountains utilizes fair value estimates based upon other observable inputs including matrix pricing, benchmark interest rates, market
comparable and other relevant inputs.

White Mountains� process to validate the market prices obtained from the outside pricing sources includes, but is not limited to, periodic
evaluation of model pricing methodologies and monthly analytical reviews of certain prices. White Mountains also periodically performs
back-testing of selected sales activity to determine whether there are any significant differences between the market price used to value the
security prior to sale and the actual sale price.

Other long-term investments, which comprises investments in limited partnerships, hedge funds and private equity interests for which the FAS
159 fair value option has been elected, are carried at fair value based upon White Mountains� proportionate interest in the underlying partnership�s
or fund�s net asset value, which approximates fair value. These investments are not publicly traded and, accordingly, quoted market prices are not
available. In circumstances where the partnership net asset value is deemed to differ from fair value due to illiquidity or other factors, net asset
value is adjusted accordingly.

Level 3 measurements for fixed maturities relate primarily to securities recently acquired at the date of measurement and for which observable
inputs were unavailable at that date. Fair value estimates based on conventional market methodologies (e.g., present value of future cash flows)
are generally priced in the subsequent period through quoted prices or other observable inputs.

Where appropriate, assets and liabilities measured at fair value have been adjusted for the effect of counterparty credit risk.

White Mountains� investment in Symetra warrants is measured at fair value. Because the warrants are not publicly traded, the fair value
measurement is based on unobservable inputs and accordingly is classified as a Level 3 measurement.
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The following table summarizes White Mountains� total fair value measurements and the fair value measurements based on Level 3 inputs for
investments at March 31, 2009:

March 31, 2009

Million Total fair value Level 3 Inputs
Level 3 Inputs as a

% of total fair value
Fixed maturities $ 5,675.2 $ 170.6 3.0%
Common equity securities 318.8 109.3 34.3%
Convertible fixed maturity
investments 265.0 .7 .3%
Short-term investments 2,150.6 � �
Other long-term investments(1) 381.4 381.4 100.0%
Total investments $ 8,791.0 $ 662.0 7.5%

(1) The fair value of investment partnerships excludes carrying value of $13.7 associated with other investment limited
partnerships accounted for using the equity method.
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The following table summarizes the changes in White Mountains� Level 3 fair value measurements for the three months ended March 31, 2009:

Millions
Fixed

Maturities

Common
equity

securities

Convertible
fixed

maturities
Other

investments Total
Balance at January 1, 2009 $ 156.4 $ 113.3 $ � $ 402.4 $ 672.1
Total realized and unrealized losses (3.6) (3.6) � (44.3) (51.5)
Purchases 16.4 � .7 45.5 62.6
Sales (17.1) (.4) � (22.2) (39.7)
Transfers in 57.9 � � � 57.9
Transfers out (39.4) � � � (39.4)
Balance at March 31, 2009 $ 170.6 $ 109.3 $ .7 $ 381.4 $ 662.0

Transfers into Level 3 measurements for fixed maturities relate primarily to securities as of the quarter end for which observable inputs were
unavailable. Such securities were manually priced using a combination of market inputs such as benchmark interest rates, market comparables
and/or broker quotes. Transfers out of Level 3 measurements for fixed maturity investments relate to securities that were manually priced in the
prior period but have been priced using observable inputs in the current period.

The following table summarizes the amount of total gains (losses) included in earnings attributable to the change in unrealized gains (losses) for
Level 3 assets for three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Millions 2009 2008
Fixed maturities $  9.9 $ (3.9)
Common equity securities (2.7) (2.8)
Convertible fixed maturities � �
Other long-term investments (13.7) (17.8)
Total change in unrealized losses - Level 3 assets $ (6.5) $ (24.5)

All of White Mountains� variable annuity reinsurance liabilities ($432.3 million) were classified as Level 3 measurements at March 31, 2009.
The following table summarizes the changes in White Mountains� variable annuity reinsurance guarantee liabilities and derivative instruments for
the three months ended March 31, 2009:

Millions

(Guarantee
Liabilities)

Level 3

Derivative
Instruments
Level 3 (1)

Derivative
Instruments
Level 2 (2)

Derivative
Instruments
Level 1 (3)

Net Derivative
 Assets

(Guarantee
Liabilities)

Balance at January 1, 2009 $ (467.1) $ 198.3 $ 5.0 $ (24.9) $ (288.7)
Purchases � 8.8 � � 8.8
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) 34.8 (15.7) (6.4) (31.0) (18.3)
Transfers in (out) � � � � �
Sales/settlements � � � 11.6 11.6
Balance at March 31, 2009 $ (432.3) $ 191.4 $ (1.4) $ (44.3) $ (286.6)
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(1)  Comprises OTC instruments.

(2)  Comprises interest rate swaps. Fair value measurement based upon bid/ask pricing quotes for similar
instruments that are actively traded.

(3)  Comprises exchange traded equity index, foreign currency and interest rate futures. Fair value measurements
based upon quoted prices for identical instruments that are actively traded.
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All of White Mountains� weather risk management contracts ($10.5 million) were classified as Level 3 measurements at March 31, 2009. The
following table summarizes the changes in White Mountains� weather risk management contract Level 3 measurements for the three months
ended March 31, 2009 and 2008:

Three Months Ended March 31,
Millions 2009 2008
Net liability for weather derivative contracts as of January 1 (1) $ 13.1 $ 17.9
Net consideration (paid) received during the period for new contracts (.2) 8.4
Net receipts (payments) on contracts settled during the period .3 (7.8)
Net decrease in fair value on settled and unsettled contracts (2.7) (4.0)
Net liability for weather derivative contracts as of March 31 (2) $ 10.5 $ 14.5

(1)  Includes unamortized deferred gains of $5.1 and $2.9 as of January 1, 2009 and 2008.

(2)  Includes unamortized deferred gains of $4.0 and $4.6 as of March 31, 2009 and 2008.
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NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

This report includes four non-GAAP financial measures that have been reconciled to their most comparable GAAP financial measures. White
Mountains believes these measures to be more relevant than comparable GAAP measures in evaluating White Mountains� results of operations
and financial condition.

Adjusted comprehensive net income is a non-GAAP financial measure that excludes the change in net unrealized gains and losses from
Symetra�s fixed maturity portfolio from comprehensive net income. In the calculation of comprehensive net income under GAAP, fixed maturity
investments are marked-to-market while the liabilities to which those assets are matched are not. Symetra attempts to earn a �spread� between
what it earns on its investments and what it pays out on its products. In order to try to fix this spread, Symetra invests in a manner that tries to
match the duration and cash flows of its investments with the required cash outflows associated with its life insurance and structured settlements
products. As a result, Symetra typically earns the same spread on in-force business whether interest rates fall or rise. Further, at any given time,
some of Symetra�s structured settlement obligations may extend 40 or 50 years into the future, which is further out than the longest maturing
fixed maturity investments regularly available for purchase in the market (typically 30 years). For these long-dated products, Symetra is unable
to fully match the obligation with assets until the remaining expected payout schedule comes within the duration of securities available in the
market. If at that time, these fixed maturity investments have yields that are lower than the yields expected when the structured settlement
product was originally priced, the spread for the product will shrink and Symetra will ultimately harvest lower returns for its shareholders.
GAAP comprehensive net income increases when rates decline, which would suggest an increase in the value of Symetra - the opposite of what
is happening to the intrinsic value of the business. Therefore, White Mountains� management and Board of Directors use adjusted comprehensive
net income when assessing Symetra�s quarterly financial performance. In addition, this measure is typically the predominant component of
change in adjusted book value per share, which is used in calculation of White Mountains� performance for both short-term (annual bonus) and
long-term incentive plans. The reconciliation of adjusted comprehensive net income to comprehensive net income is
included on page 31.

Adjusted book value per share is a non-GAAP measure which is derived by expanding the GAAP calculation of book value per White
Mountains common share to exclude net unrealized gains/(losses) from Symetra�s fixed maturity portfolio. In addition, the number of common
shares outstanding used in the calculation of adjusted book value per share are adjusted to exclude unearned shares of restricted stock, the
compensation cost of which, at the date of calculation, has yet to be amortized. The reconciliation of adjusted book value per share to book value
per share is included on page 30.

During the second quarter of 2008, White Mountains changed its principal financial reporting measure from �fully diluted tangible book value per
share� to �adjusted book value per share�. Fully diluted tangible book value per share is a non-GAAP measure that differs from adjusted book value
per share by excluding goodwill and other intangible assets. The change from fully diluted tangible book value per share to adjusted book value
per share has been presented retroactively for all periods. As a result of the change, goodwill and other intangible assets are included in the
calculation for all periods presented. For periods ended March 31, 2008 and prior, White Mountains had not recorded any significant intangible
assets other than goodwill. The goodwill, which primarily relates to the FIN 46 consolidation of White Mountains� investment in the Tuckerman
Funds, was $19.6 million, $19.5 million and $34.0 million as of March 31, 2009, December 31, 2008 and March 31, 2008, respectively. The
inclusion of goodwill in adjusted book value per share did not have a significant effect on the calculation of growth per share for any periods
presented.

Total capital at White Mountains is comprised of White Mountains shareholders� equity, debt and noncontrolling interest in OneBeacon Ltd and
the WMRe Preference Shares. Total adjusted capital excludes the equity in net unrealized gains from Symetra�s fixed maturity portfolio from
total capital. The reconciliation of total capital to total adjusted capital is included on page 43.
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Adjusted book value per share at OneBeacon is a non-GAAP financial measure which is derived by excluding the impact of economically
defeasing OneBeacon�s mandatorily redeemable preferred stock from book value per share, the most closely comparable GAAP measure.
Management believes that adjusted book value per share is a useful supplement to understanding the OneBeacon�s earnings and profitability. A
reconciliation of OneBeacon�s book value per share to OneBeacon�s adjusted book value per share is included on page 33.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Refer to the Company�s 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K for a complete discussion regarding White Mountains� critical accounting estimates.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The information contained in this report may contain �forward-looking statements� within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. All statements, other than statements of historical facts, included or referenced in
this report which address activities, events or developments which White Mountains expects or anticipates will or may occur in the future are
forward-looking statements. The words �will�, �believe,� �intend,� �expect,� �anticipate,� �project,� �estimate,� �predict� and similar expressions are also
intended to identify forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements include, among others, statements with respect to White
Mountains�:

•  changes in adjusted book value per share or return on equity;

•  business strategy;

•  financial and operating targets or plans;

•  incurred losses and the adequacy of its loss and LAE reserves and related reinsurance;

•  projections of revenues, income (or loss), earnings (or loss) per share, dividends, market share or other
financial forecasts;

•  expansion and growth of its business and operations; and

•  future capital expenditures.

These statements are based on certain assumptions and analyses made by White Mountains in light of its experience and perception of historical
trends, current conditions and expected future developments, as well as other factors believed to be appropriate in the circumstances. However,
whether actual results and developments will conform with its expectations and predictions is subject to a number of risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materially from expectations, including:

•  the risks associated with Item 1A of the Company�s 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K;

•  claims arising from catastrophic events, such as hurricanes, earthquakes, floods or terrorist attacks;

•  the continued availability of capital and financing;

Edgar Filing: WHITE MOUNTAINS INSURANCE GROUP LTD - Form 10-Q

97



•  general economic, market or business conditions;

•  business opportunities (or lack thereof) that may be presented to it and pursued;

•  competitive forces, including the conduct of other property and casualty insurers and reinsurers;

•  changes in domestic or foreign laws or regulations, or their interpretation, applicable to White Mountains, its
competitors or its clients;

•  an economic downturn or other economic conditions adversely affecting its financial position;

•  recorded loss reserves subsequently proving to have been inadequate; and

•  other factors, most of which are beyond White Mountains� control.

Consequently, all of the forward-looking statements made in this report are qualified by these cautionary statements, and there can be no
assurance that the actual results or developments anticipated by White Mountains will be realized or, even if substantially realized, that they will
have the expected consequences to, or effects on, White Mountains or its business or operations. White Mountains assumes no obligation to
update publicly any such forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Refer to White Mountains� 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K and in particular Item 7A. - �Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About
Market Risk�.  As of March 31, 2009, there were no material changes in the market risks as described in White Mountains� most recent Annual
Report.

50

Edgar Filing: WHITE MOUNTAINS INSURANCE GROUP LTD - Form 10-Q

98



Table of Contents

Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

The Principal Executive Officer (�PEO�) and the Principal Financial Officer (�PFO�) of White Mountains have evaluated the effectiveness of its
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this
report. Based on that evaluation, the PEO and PFO have concluded that White Mountains� disclosure controls and procedures are adequate and
effective.

There were no significant changes with respect to the Company�s internal control over financial reporting or in other factors that materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended March 31, 2009.

Part II.           OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1.            Legal Proceedings.

Scandinavian Re

Scandinavian Re is engaged in an arbitration proceeding with St. Paul Fire & Marine Insurance Company, et. al. (�St. Paul�).  This arbitration
proceeding relates a dispute over a multi-year Retrocessional Casualty Aggregate Stop Loss Agreement concerning certain classes of casualty
reinsurance business originally written by St. Paul during the 1999-2001 underwriting years.  St. Paul alleges that, under the agreement,
Scandinavian Re is required to reimburse it for all incurred losses.  Scandinavian Re�s position is that only certain losses may be ceded to the
agreement and, in addition, that St. Paul made numerous material misrepresentations and omissions during the formation of the agreement as
well as during the administration of the program.  Accordingly, Scandinavian Re is seeking rescission or reformation of the agreement. 
Discovery is ongoing and the arbitration is now set for June 2009.

Item 1A.         Risk Factors

There have been no material changes in the Registrant�s risk factors since the Registrant�s most recently filed Form 10-K.

Item 2.           Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

None
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Item 3.           Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

None.

Item 4.           Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

None.

Item 5.           Other Information.

None.
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Item 6. Exhibits.

(a) Exhibits
11 - Statement Re Computation of Per Share Earnings **
31.1 - Principal Executive Officer Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14

(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Amended. *
31.2 - Principal Financial Officer Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14

(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Amended. *
32.1 - Principal Executive Officer Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C.

Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. *

32.2 - Principal Financial Officer Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. *

* Included herein
** Not included as an exhibit as the information is contained elsewhere within this report. See Note 9 of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

WHITE MOUNTAINS INSURANCE GROUP, LTD.
(Registrant)

Date: May 1, 2009 By:    /s/ J. Brian Palmer
J. Brian Palmer
Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer
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